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HeidelbergCement India Limited
Regd. Offi  ce: 9th Floor, Tower ‘C’, Infi nity Towers, DLF Cyber City, Phase II, Gurgaon, Haryana -122002

N O T I C E  T O  M E M B E R S

NOTICE is hereby given that the 53rd Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Members of the Company will be held at 9.30 A.M. 
on Wednesday, the 25th April 2012 at Epicentre, Apparel House, Sector 44, InsƟ tuƟ onal Area, Gurgaon, Haryana to transact 
the following business: -

 1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company consisƟ ng of the Balance Sheet as at 31st December 
2011 and the Profi t and Loss Account for the fi nancial year ended on that date including notes thereto together with 
the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

 2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. P.G. Mankad who reƟ res by rotaƟ on and being eligible, off ers himself for 
re-appointment.

 3. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Albert Scheuer who reƟ res by rotaƟ on and being eligible, off ers himself for 
re-appointment.

 4. To consider and if thought fi t to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s) the following as an Ordinary ResoluƟ on: 

  “RESOLVED that M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm RegistraƟ on No.: 301003E), be and are hereby 
appointed as Auditors of the Company to hold offi  ce from the conclusion of the 53rd Annual General MeeƟ ng unƟ l the 
conclusion of the next Annual General MeeƟ ng on such remuneraƟ on as may be agreed upon between the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors, in addiƟ on to reimbursement of service tax and all out of pocket expenses in connecƟ on with 
Audit of the accounts of the Company.”

 5. To consider and if thought fi t to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s) the following as an Ordinary ResoluƟ on: 

  “RESOLVED that pursuant to SecƟ on 256 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, the 
vacancy caused on the Board by the reƟ rement of Mr. Amitabha Ghosh, Director of the Company who reƟ res by 
rotaƟ on and does not seek re-appointment at this Annual General MeeƟ ng, be not fi lled up.”

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 13th February 2012

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
Rajesh Relan

Company Secretary

NOTES :

 1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND ON 
A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT 
APPOINTING A PROXY HAS TO BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS 
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

 2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to SecƟ on 173(2) of the Companies Act 1956 is annexed.

 3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 17th April 2012 to 
25th April 2012 (both days inclusive). 

 4. The share transfer instruments, complete in all respects, should be sent to the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents, 
M/s. Integrated Enterprises (India) Limited, 30, Ramana Residency, 4th Cross, Sampige Road, Malleswaram, Bangalore - 
560003 well in advance so as to reach the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents prior to the book closure. 
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 5. Members who conƟ nue to hold the shares in physical form are requested to inform any change in their address, bank 
parƟ culars, nominee etc., to the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in dematerialized form 
are requested to approach their Depository ParƟ cipant for change of address, bank parƟ culars, nominee etc. 

 6. Members are requested to note that in case of transfers, deleƟ on of name of deceased shareholder, transmission 
and transposiƟ on of names in respect of shares held in physical form, submission of photocopy of PAN Card of the 
transferee(s), surviving holder(s), legal heir(s) and joint holder(s) respecƟ vely, along with necessary documents at the 
Ɵ me of lodgement of request for transfer/ transmission/transposiƟ on, is mandatory.

 7. Under the provisions of SecƟ on 109A and 109B of the Companies Act, 1956, shareholder(s) is/are enƟ tled to nominate 
in the prescribed manner, a person to whom his/her/their shares in the Company, shall vest aŌ er his/her/their lifeƟ me. 
Members who are holding shares in physical form and are interested in availing the nominaƟ on facility are requested 
to write to the Company/RTA.

 8. (a)  Members aƩ ending the meeƟ ng are requested to complete the enclosed aƩ endance slip and submit the same 
at the entrance of the meeƟ ng hall. AƩ endance at the Annual General MeeƟ ng shall not be allowed without 
producƟ on of the aƩ endance slip duly signed. 

  (b)  Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report as addiƟ onal copies of the same will not be 
distributed at the meeƟ ng.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to SecƟ on 173(2) of the Companies Act 1956 / Code for Corporate Governance

Item No. 2: 

Brief resume of Mr. P.G. Mankad who is proposed to be re-appointed as Director is given below:

Mr. P.G. Mankad, IAS (Retd.) aged 70 years is M.A. and has done Diploma in Development Studies from Cambridge, U.K. He 
was Finance Secretary and Secretary Industries in the respecƟ ve Ministries of the Government of India. He has also worked 
as ExecuƟ ve Director with Asian Development Bank, Manila. He has experƟ se in the areas of Public AdministraƟ on & Policy, 
Finance, Industrial Development & Investment, InternaƟ onal Economic RelaƟ ons and Development Banking.

Mr. P.G. Mankad is on the Board of Directors of Tata InternaƟ onal Ltd., Tata Elxsi Ltd., The Tata Power Company Ltd., DSP 
Blackrock Investment Managers Pvt. Ltd., Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Ltd., Noida Toll Bridge Company Ltd., 
Max India Ltd., United Breweries (Holdings) Ltd., ICRA Ltd., SRF Ltd. and Hindustan Media Ventures Ltd. 

Mr. P.G. Mankad is Member of the Audit CommiƩ ee of Tata InternaƟ onal Ltd., SRF Ltd., DSP Blackrock Investment Managers 
Pvt. Ltd. and Noida Toll Bridge Company Ltd. He is Chairman of Investors’ Grievance & Share Transfer CommiƩ ee of Tata Elxsi 
Ltd. and Member of Investors’ Grievance & Share Transfer CommiƩ ee of Max India Ltd. and Noida Toll Bridge Company Ltd. 

Mr. P.G. Mankad is also Chairman of the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance CommiƩ ee and Member of Audit CommiƩ ee 
of the Company. Mr. P.G. Mankad does not hold any Equity Shares in the Company.

Except Mr. P.G. Mankad, none of the other Directors may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed 
resoluƟ on. The Board of Directors recommends his appointment for approval of the members.

Item No. 3:

Brief resume of Dr. Albert Scheuer who is proposed to be re-appointed as Director is given below:

Dr. Albert Scheuer, aged 54 years, completed Degree in Mechanical Engineering / Process Technology from the Technical 
University of Clausthal, Germany in the year 1982. He has also completed Doctorate in Mechanical Engineering in the 
year 1987.

Dr. Scheuer started his professional career with the Research InsƟ tute of the German Cement Industry in 1983. AŌ er joining 
HeidelbergCement group in 1992, he took on various posiƟ ons at Leimen Cement Plant and Heidelberg Technology Center. 
From 1998 to 2005, he was in charge of Technical support for European cement plants as Managing Director of Heidelberg 
Technology Center. Since 2005, he was responsible for HeidelbergCement’s acƟ viƟ es in China as Chief OperaƟ ng Offi  cer and 
in August 2007 he was appointed as Member of the Managing Board and ExecuƟ ve Vice President of Lehigh Cement. He 
also took acƟ ve part in the integraƟ on of the operaƟ ons of Hanson, North America with HeidelbergCement Group. Since 1st 
April, 2008, he is in charge of Asia-Oceania Region of HeidelbergCement Group and also entrusted with the responsibility 
of worldwide coordinaƟ on of the acƟ viƟ es of Heidelberg Technology Center.
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Dr. Scheuer is a Director/Member of Managing Board of the following Companies: -

HeidelbergCement AG, HeidelbergCement Technology Center GmbH, Easy Point Industrial Ltd., Guangzhou HeidelbergCement 
Yuexiu Enterprise Management ConsulƟ ng Company Ltd., HeidelbergCement Asia Pte Ltd., HeidelbergCement Holding HK 
Ltd., Squareal Cement Ltd., Cochin Cements Ltd., Jidong Heidelberg (Fufeng) Cement Company Limited, PT Indocement 
Tunggal Prakarsa Tbk, Heidelberg Energie GmbH, Jidong Heidelberg (Jingyang) Cement Company Limited, HeidelbergCement 
Bangladesh Limited, China Century Cement Limited, Hanson Investment Holding Pte. Limited, Hanson Pacifi c (S) Pte Limited 
and Hanson Building Materials (S) Pte. Limited.

He is a member of Audit CommiƩ ee of Cochin Cements Limited. Dr. Scheuer does not hold any Equity Shares in the Company.

Except Dr. Scheuer, none of the other Directors may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resoluƟ on. 
The Board of Directors recommends his appointment for approval of the members.

Item No. 5:

In accordance with SecƟ on 256 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with ArƟ cle 88 of the ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company, 
Mr. Amitabha Ghosh, Director of the Company, reƟ res by rotaƟ on at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng. Due to personal 
reasons, Mr. Ghosh, has not off ered himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors places on record its appreciaƟ on for 
the valuable contribuƟ on made by Mr. Ghosh during his tenure as Director of the Company. The Board proposes that the 
vacancy caused by his reƟ rement shall not be fi lled up at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng. 

None of the Directors may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resoluƟ on. The Board of Directors 
recommends the resoluƟ on for approval of the members.

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 13th February 2012

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
Rajesh Relan

Company Secretary
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Directors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 53rd Annual Report together with the audited accounts of the 
Company for the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011.

ECONOMIC SCENARIO

India’s GDP growth has been slowing down over the period due to  various external and internal factors, including the 
adverse impact of crude oil prices,  conƟ nuing infl aƟ onary pressures, high interest rates and a percepƟ on of slow down in 
economic decision making among investors leading to a decline in investment fl ows.  An uncertain external environment, 
the sharp depreciaƟ on of the Rupee against the US Dollar in the last quarter and the decline in various indices of economic 
performance have also been cause of concern for policy makers and industry. The esƟ mates for GDP growth have 
consequently been lowered to around 7% for the fi scal 2011-12.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

ProducƟ on and Sales fi gures of the Company in quanƟ taƟ ve terms are as under:

Financial year ended 
31st December 2011

Financial year ended 
31st December 2010

ProducƟ on (in tonnes)

 -Clinker 1,450,303 13,36,805

 -Cement 2,853,682 26,45,725

 -GGBS 21,550 15,993

Sales (in tonnes)

 -Clinker  68,964 81,449

 -Cement 2,812,017 26,09,254

 -GGBS  20,679 17,151

Your Company sold 2.81 million tonnes of cement in 2011 which is the highest ever cement sales in the history of the 
Company. 

The brand of your Company “Mycem” conƟ nued its journey northward garnering higher premiums and beƩ er market 
posiƟ oning. Sustained good quality of cement assisted the brand in improving customer acceptance. Technical services 
to consumers facilitated in improving the overall product saƟ sfacƟ on. A recent study by Nielsen to gauge customer 
saƟ sfacƟ on for “Mycem” confi rms the above. Brand visibility helped us to aƩ ract new channel partners and retain the 
exisƟ ng ones. With the focus on the upcoming expansion, our team successfully added over 250 dealers and about 
1500 retailers. The Company also conducted number of training programs for dealers and a mega event for C&F Agents 
and PlaƟ num Dealers.

During the year sharp rise in input costs without any signifi cant increase in realizaƟ ons impacted margins. During February 
2011, linkage coal prices increased in the range of 30% to 150% for various grades. Besides the price of coal, its shortage 
also troubled the industry. Strike at Singareni Collieries Company Limited, excessive monsoon in Eastern and Central India 
and the labour strike at Coal India and its subsidiaries severely impacted the coal producƟ on. During the year power tariff  
was also increased as a result of increase in coal prices.

Shortage of coal aff ected power generaƟ on adversely, thereby reducing the fl y ash availability. Some power plants were 
forced to use low ash imported coal which further decreased the availability of fl y ash. Shortage of fl y ash necessitated 
incorporaƟ on of more clinker for manufacturing Portland Pozzolana Cement (PPC) at Imlai unit thereby eroding margins. 
BoƩ lenecks at port near Raigad lead to shortage of clinker at Raigad unit. 



5

HeidelbergCement India Limited

Poor quality and unavailability of gypsum locally, forced your Company to import gypsum. The weakening of Rupee 
increased the cost of imported Gypsum by about 10%. Signifi cant cost increases were also witnessed in petcoke, slag and 
bags. Freight cost for transportaƟ on by road increased due to increase in diesel price. Railway freight for Cement and Coal 
was also increased during the year. ImposiƟ on of excise duty on fl y ash & coal, enhancement of excise duty on cement and 
HSD price hike further aggravated the posiƟ on. In the wake of all round cost pressures the Company conƟ nued its relentless 
drive to improve the consumpƟ on parameters, wherever possible.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company achieved gross sales of Rs.112662.56 lacs during the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011, against 
Rs. 98537.07 lacs during the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2010. The net profi t of the Company during the fi nancial 
year ended 31st December 2011 was Rs.2917.25 lacs as compared to the net profi t of Rs. 6,329.95 lacs during the fi nancial 
year ended 31st December 2010.

The snapshot of your Company’s performance for the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011 vis-à-vis its performance in 
the previous year ended 31st December, 2010 is as under:-

(Rs. in lacs)

Financial year ended 
31st December 2011

Financial year ended 
31st December 2010

Earnings before Interest, DepreciaƟ on and Taxes (EBIDTA) 7,759.97 12,900.82

Less :

 - Finance Charges (383.75) (421.31)

 - DepreciaƟ on / AmorƟ zaƟ on (3,139.88) (2,884.88)

 (3523.63) (3,306.19)

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 4,236.34 9,594.63

Less:

 - Deferred Tax Credit (296.81) (1,365.12)

 - Provision for Income Tax (1,022.28) (1,899.56)

1,319.09 (3264.68)

Net Profi t 2,917.25 6,329.95

Less: Dividend on 9% CumulaƟ ve Redeemable Preference Shares 
(including Corporate Dividend Tax of Rs. 7.24 lacs).

- (50.83)

Add: Balance b/f from the previous year 9707.53 4,777.75

Less: Amount Transferred to Capital RedempƟ on Reserve - (1,349.34)

Profi t / (Loss) carried to Balance Sheet 12,624.78 9,707.53

CAPACITY EXPANSION

The work on the expansion projects at Damoh & Jhansi units to enhance the aggregate installed capacity of the Company 
from 3.07 MTPA to 6 MTPA is at an advanced stage and it expected that the commercial producƟ on will commence in the 
fi rst half of the year 2012. In view of the same the Company has already started seeding the markets of Bihar and has plans 
to commence deliveries in UƩ rakhand, Delhi and Haryana also. Your Company will further increase its dealers and retailers 
network and open new sales offi  ces in 2012.

DIVIDEND

In view of the requirement of funds for the expansion projects at Damoh and Jhansi units, your Directors have decided not 
to recommend any Dividend on the equity shares for the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011.
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REͳAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Mr. P.G. Mankad, Mr. Amitabha Ghosh and Dr. Albert Scheuer, Directors of the Company retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company. While Mr. Mankad and Dr. Scheuer are eligible and have 
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Ghosh due to personal reasons has not offered himself 
for re-election.

The Company has been privileged in having on its Board of Directors a person of Mr. Ghosh’s eminence, and he has also 
contributed signifi cantly as the Chairman of the Audit CommiƩ ee. The Board places on record its appreciaƟ on of his 
contribuƟ ons during his tenure.

The Board proposes that the vacancy caused by the reƟ rement of Mr. Amitabha Ghosh shall not be fi lled up at the ensuing 
Annual General MeeƟ ng in terms of SecƟ on 256 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. P.G. Mankad and Dr. Albert Scheuer at the ensuing AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements of SecƟ on 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons obtained by them, confi rm & declare that they have taken all 
reasonable steps, as are required, to ensure that :

 (a) The applicable accounƟ ng standards have been followed in the preparaƟ on of the annual accounts for the fi nancial 
year ended 31st December 2011 and no departures have been made there from;

 (b) They have selected such accounƟ ng policies and applied them consistently and they have made judgments and 
esƟ mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of your Company as 
at 31st December, 2011 and of the profi t of your Company for the year ended on that date;

 (c) They have taken proper and suffi  cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng 
frauds and other irregulariƟ es; and

 (d) The annual accounts for the fi nancial year ended 31st December, 2011 are prepared on a going concern basis.

AUDITORS 

The Statutory Auditors, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered Accountants, who were appointed at the last Annual General 
MeeƟ ng held on 10th June 2011, hold offi  ce up to the conclusion of the ensuing AGM and are eligible for re-appointment. 
The said Auditors have confi rmed that their re-appointment, if made, shall be within the limit laid down under SecƟ on 
224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956. The Auditors’ observaƟ ons in their Report and the relevant notes to the accounts are 
self-explanatory.

COST AUDIT

Pursuant to the direcƟ ves of the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs, your Company has appointed Mr. A. Nagaraja, Cost Accountant 
as Cost Auditors of the Company under SecƟ on 233B of the Companies Act, 1956 for the year 2011. Cost Audit Report for 
the year 2010 was fi led with Ministry of Corporate Aff airs on 28th June 2011. 

The Cost Audit Report for the year 2011 will be submiƩ ed to the Ministry within six months of the close of the fi nancial year 
i.e., on or before 30th June 2012. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In terms of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges a report on Corporate Governance is included in 
the Annual Report. A CerƟ fi cate from a PracƟ sing Company Secretary on compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance 
is also annexed to the Corporate Governance Report. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given as addiƟ on to this 
Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

During the year, Industrial RelaƟ ons remained harmonious and employees at all levels demonstrated a high degree of 
commitment towards achieving the Company’s goals. Long term wage seƩ lement has been signed for all plants for a period 
of four years.

The Company has focused on various measures to aƩ ract and retain talent, including the creaƟ on of a saƟ sfying working 
environment, encouraging worker parƟ cipaƟ on in producƟ vity and quality iniƟ aƟ ves, providing opportuniƟ es for skill up 
gradaƟ on and career advancement, and recognizing and rewarding good performance.

Training, communicaƟ on, structured inducƟ on process, discussion and feedback sessions and soŌ  skill development 
remained some of the key areas of human resource development.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY

Health and safety remains an area of very high priority for the Company. 

The Company’s objecƟ ve, in line with that of the HeidelbergCement Group, is to achieve the lowest possible injury 
frequency rate across all its units, at construcƟ on as well as at operaƟ onal stages. It has put in place appropriate systems 
for this, including guidelines on project safety in construcƟ on, regular monitoring, and eff orts at improvement on the basis 
of experience and detailed analysis of the root causes of unsafe condiƟ ons or pracƟ ces. ConƟ nuing training and constant 
aƩ enƟ on to safety are integral parts of the strategy.

No fataliƟ es happened during the year 2011.

Narsingarh Limestone Mine of the company received award for 3rd best for “Overall Safety Performance” during Metalliferrous 
Mines Safety Week celebraƟ ons in Jabalpur Region.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ΈCSRΉ

Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and policy, and it has been pursuing this on 
a sustained basis. The focus of the Company’s CSR acƟ viƟ es has been on three areas viz., healthcare, educaƟ on and 
improvement of the surrounding areas where it has presence. During the year under review the Company organized 
various medical camps for the residents of the surrounding villages. Medical assistance was also provided through mobile 
dispensaries. Medicines are provided free of cost to the benefi ciaries. Family welfare programs were also undertaken. Every 
Plant has a medical centre along with Ambulance to provide Ɵ mely medical help and treatment.

The schools assisted by your Company provide educaƟ on of high standard not only to the children of the Company’s 
employees but also to the children from the surrounding villages. Various sports and cultural events were organized at the 
schools to ensure holisƟ c development of the students. 

In order to tackle the problem of shortage of water in the vicinity of some of the Company’s plants the villagers were 
provided treated water from the plants,  wherever applicable. The Company also made necessary arrangements for 
cleaning, deepening and renovaƟ ng old wells and ponds in the surrounding areas. Some other development acƟ viƟ es like 
construcƟ on of a road at Imlai village, a cremaƟ on centre at Narsingarh village and passenger faciliƟ es at local bus stand 
were also completed. 

Emphasis was laid on creaƟ on of awareness amongst the villagers about the need to protect the environment. With this 
objecƟ ve in mind cloth bags were distributed to the villagers so as to reduce the usage of plasƟ c bags. Emphasis is also laid 
on plantaƟ on of trees. With the help of social clubs, the Company organized training programs for women and unemployed 
youth so that they can fruiƞ ully engage themselves in some acƟ vity and improve their standard of living. 

Camps were organized at the Company’s plants to facilitate local people to obtain “Aadhar Cards” under the UID Project 
of Government. On the occasion of Akshya TruƟ ya a Samuhik Vivah Ceremony was organized at Damoh. DonaƟ ons were 
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given by Ammasandra unit for renovaƟ on of Kariyamma Temple and for organising Tumkur Zilla Uthsava and Kannada 
Sahiyatha Sammelana. CSR acƟ viƟ es carried out by the Company have further strengthened the Company’s relaƟ onship 
with the local people.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

ParƟ culars of employees as required under SecƟ on 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (ParƟ culars 
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended are given in the enclosed statement forming part of this Report as Annexure ‘A’.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The parƟ culars relaƟ ng to conservaƟ on of energy, technology absorpƟ on and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as 
required under secƟ on 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of ParƟ culars in the 
Report of Board of Directors) Rules 1988, forming part of this Report are annexed as Annexure ‘B’. 

MD / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, a cerƟ fi cate furnished by Mr. Ashish Guha, CEO & Managing Director and 
Mr. Anil Sharma, Chief Financial Offi  cer in respect of the fi nancial statements and the cash fl ow statement for the fi nancial 
year ended 31st December 2011 is annexed as Annexure ‘C’. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere graƟ tude for the cooperaƟ on and support received by the 
Company from various agencies of the Central and State Government(s). The Board also acknowledges the conƟ nued 
assistance and support of all stakeholders including Customers, Bankers, Distributors, Dealers, Suppliers and Contractors. 
The Directors are grateful for the confi dence, faith and trust reposed by the shareholders.

For and on behalf of the Board 

 Sd/-
Place : Gurgaon P.G. Mankad
Date : 13th February 2012  Chairman 
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ANNEXURE  “B” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 217(1)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF 
PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 a) Energy conservaƟ on and effi  ciency measures taken during the year 2011:

 1. Replacement of convenƟ onal separator with dynamic separators in coal mill line – 2 of Narsingarh plant. 

 2. InstallaƟ on of kiln inlet seal in line – I at Narsingarh plant. 

 3. InstallaƟ on of new blower & VF drive in kiln burner at Ammasandra plant.

 b) AddiƟ onal Proposals for the year 2012: 

 1. Replacement of cement silo feeding air liŌ s with Belt bucket elevators in Cement mill – I & II at Imlai Grinding 
unit.

 2. Replacement of convenƟ onal separator with dynamic separators in coal mill line – 1 of Narsingarh plant.

 3. InstallaƟ on of 500 KVA emergency DG set at Ammasandra plant.

 4. InstallaƟ on of VF drives in cooler fans 1 & 5 at Ammasandra Plant.

 5. InstallaƟ on of VF drive in cooler fan 6 of kiln line – 2 at Ammasandra Plant.

 c) Impact of above measures for reducƟ on of energy consumpƟ on and consequent impact on cost of producƟ on:-

  The measures stated in point (a) above have already brought some savings in cost of producƟ on. Measures stated in 
point (b) above are expected to reduce electrical and thermal energy consumpƟ on further.
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Form A

I                                                                        POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Units Total Amount Avg. Rate/unit

Current 
Year ended 
31.12.2011

Previous 
Year ended 
31.12.2010

Current 
Year ended 
31.12.2011

Previous 
Year ended 
31.12.2010

Current 
Year ended 
31.12.2011

Previous 
Year ended 
31.12.2010

(Lac Units) (Lac Rs) Rs. /Unit
1 Electricity 
 a. Purchased 1921.97 1817.06 10161.50 8855.43 5.29 4.87
 b. Own generaƟ on
  i. Through Diesel Generators 25.16 11.87  -  - 14.41 15.84
     Units per Litre of diesel/furnace oil 3.18 2.88  -  -  -  - 

    ii. Through Steam Turbine/Generator 402.70 363.26  -  - 5.56 4.32
       Units per Kg. of coal 0.77 0.89  -  -  -  - 

   (Million K. Cal)      (Rs./Million K. Cal)
2 Coal
 In process ( Cement) 1158230 1084319 12558.57 8532.97 1084.29 786.94
 In Thermal Power Plant 204738 188933 2202.09 1386.51 1075.57 733.86

(K. Ltrs) (Rs./Ltr)
3 Furnace Oil
 In Generators 629 244 221.37 71.03 35.19 29.13
 In Kilns  -  -  -  -  -  - 

4 Diesel
 In Generators 244 218 103.30 82.23 42.33 37.67
 In Kilns 60 31 25.59 11.91 42.57 39.06

5 Light Diesel 208  724 99.52  311.62 47.89  43.02 

(Cubic Mtrs)
6 Blast Furance gas 251  238 528.84  202.31 2.11  0.85 

II CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION
Standard 
(if any)

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Product - Cement
Electricity Units/t of Cement  - 82 84
Diesel Oil Ltr/t of clinker  - 0.04 0.02
Coal %/t of clinker  - 16.13 16.27
Light Diesel oil ltr/mt
 - GGBS 0.40  1.95 
 - PSC 0.37  1.38 

Blast Furance gas Nm3/t
 - GGBS 83.18  88.30 
 - PSC 42.98  44.69 
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Form B

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

 1. Eff orts in brief made towards technology absorpƟ on, adaptaƟ on and InnovaƟ on:-

 (a) AutomaƟ on of Narsingarh line I to have beƩ er operaƟ onal control.

 (b) Conversion of Coal mill – 1 ElectrostaƟ c precipitator (ESP) onto Pulse jet bag fi lter (PJBF) 

 (c) InstallaƟ on of Electronic ear (Folafone) in Cement mill – 3 at Ammasandra plant. 

 2. Benefi ts derived as a result of above eff orts:-

 (a) Because of automaƟ on operaƟ onal effi  ciency has improved.

 (b) The stack emission level has further reduced.

 (c) OpƟ mizaƟ on in Mill fi lling level has improved product quality and also reduced the power consumpƟ on.

 3. InformaƟ on regarding Technology imported during last 5 years:-

  NIL 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARININGS & OUTGO

    Total foreign exchange used and earned:

  Current Year ended  Previous Year ended

  31.12.2011 31.12.2010

 Foreign exchange used Lac Rs.  Lac Rs. 

  - Imports 7,449.80 3,238.41

  - Expenditure 2,861.83 1,564.19
   
    Total 10,311.63 4,802.60
   

 Foreign exchange earning 

 FOB value of Exports realised in Rupees Nil 
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ANNEXURE ͵ C TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
HeidelbergCement India Limited 

Dear Sirs,

Sub. : CEO & CFO’s CerƟ fi caƟ on

 (a) We have reviewed the fi nancial statements and the cash fl ow statement of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 
31st December 2011 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief : 

  (i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading.

  (ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s aff airs and are in compliance with the 
exisƟ ng accounƟ ng standards, applicable laws and regulaƟ ons.

 (b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transacƟ ons entered into by the Company during the year which 
are fraudulent, illegal or violaƟ ve of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

 (c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporƟ ng and that we have 
evaluated the eff ecƟ veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to fi nancial reporƟ ng and we have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee, defi ciencies in the design or operaƟ on of such internal controls, if 
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to recƟ fy these defi ciencies.

 (d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee :

  (i) signifi cant changes in internal control over fi nancial reporƟ ng during the year;

  (ii) signifi cant changes in accounƟ ng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 
the fi nancial statements; and

  (iii) there are no instances of signifi cant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee having a signifi cant role in the Company’s internal control system over fi nancial 
reporƟ ng.

Place : Gurgaon
Date : 13th February 2012

Sd/-
Ashish Guha

CEO & Managing Director

Sd/- 
Anil Kumar Sharma

Chief Financial Offi  cer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Developments
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• During CY 2011 approx. 20 Million t of cement capacity was added by the industry taking the overall installed cement 
capacity to approx. 296 Million t as on 31st December 2011.

• Capacity uƟ lizaƟ on during CY 2011 averaged at 73% against 76% for CY 2010.
  (Source: CMA/Industry EsƟ mates )

OpportuniƟ es and Threats 

Part 1: OpportuniƟ es 

• The Government of India has projected increase in infrastructure investment to USD one trillion for 12th fi ve year plan 
as against USD 514 billion projected during 11th fi ve year plan (2007 to 2012). (Source : DIPP, December 2011).

• Amount unspent by Government on infrastructure projects in the 11th fi ve year plan will spill over to 12th fi ve year 
plan (2012 to 2017). It is thus expected that the Government will award new projects which will boost overall economic 
acƟ vity. 

• RBI has hiked the key rates – Repo and Reverse Repo thirteen Ɵ mes since March 2010 to combat infl aƟ on. It is amply 
clear from the various GDP forecasts for 2011-12 and the monthly IIP data that high interest rates have aff ected growth. 
The interest rates are expected to reduce in CY 2012 owing to abatement of infl aƟ onary pressure which will:-

 – Boost the housing sector. 
 – Increase the private sector investments on infrastructure and capital formaƟ on.
 – Improve the overall consumpƟ on.

• The demand for cement from rural India is likely to be robust in view of the Government sƟ mulus for enhancing rural 
income levels e.g., NREGA as well as various other schemes being implemented like Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojna, 
Indira Awas Yojna, and Bharat Nirman.

• The work on the expansion projects at Damoh and Jhansi units is at an advanced stage and it is expected that the 
commercial producƟ on will commence in the fi rst half of CY12. Post expansion, the total cement capacity of the 
Company would double to 6 Million Tonnes per annum. This will bring economies of scale.

• In view of the expansion project the Company has already started seeding the markets of Bihar and chalked out strategy 
to sell in the markets of UƩ rakhand, Delhi and Haryana. 
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• UnƟ l now the Company is only manufacturing PPC. AŌ er the commencement of the commercial producƟ on from the 
expansion project the Company will also manufacture OPC to cater to the growing infrastructure demand.

Part 2: Threats

• Although the interest rate cycle has peaked out but RBI has signaled that interest rates may not go down if infl aƟ on 
remains at elevated levels. Thus in case the infl aƟ on and interest rates do not come within acceptable limits, it will 
impact economic acƟ viƟ es.

• There has been signifi cant capacity addiƟ on during the last three years. Cement demand has not been able to keep 
pace with the addiƟ onal supply in the market. The resulƟ ng demand supply mismatch in certain regions may conƟ nue 
to aff ect the cement prices and realisaƟ ons for a few more quarters. 

• It is considered that the cement demand usually grows at 1.2 Ɵ mes the GDP growth rate but the same didn’t 
materialise during the last two years. In case the GDP growth rate further declines; the cement demand may be 
adversely impacted.

• Coal India Limited (CIL) which earlier used to revise coal prices once in every two years, has now done two revisions 
within a span of one year. CIL has w.e.f. 1st January 2012 switched to gross calorifi c value (GCV) based coal pricing to 
bring it in line with internaƟ onal methodology. However, under pressure, CIL has done a parƟ al roll back. Coal prices 
are likely to remain high due to which the cost of producƟ on will be high, thereby impacƟ ng the margins. Due to non-
sancƟ oning of linkage coal for the increased capacity, the Company will be compelled to import coal. The weakening of 
Rupee would have adverse impact on the total fuel bill.

• Increase in coal prices are likely to have a cascading eff ect on the cost of power, clinker and other processed input 
materials which are expected to rise adding to the cost pressures.

• Upward trend in input costs is not showing signs of abatement. Increase in price of petroleum products will further 
increase inward and outward freight cost.

• Shortage of domesƟ c coal may force power companies to import coal (low ash content) thereby reducing the fl y ash 
output. Shortage of fl y ash necessitates higher clinker incorporaƟ on for manufacturing cement, which impacts margins.

• The quality of domesƟ c natural gypsum has deteriorated forcing many cement producers to use imported gypsum. The 
weakening of Rupee may increase the cost of imported gypsum. 

• RestricƟ ons on iron ore mining especially in the southern region may impact availability of slag.
• Changes in the regulatory environment e.g., proposed Mines and Minerals (Development and RegulaƟ on) Bill, if 

enacted, will further add to the cost pressures as royalty burden will increase.
• Cement industry signifi cantly depends upon Railways for movement of raw materials and fi nished goods. Restricted 

availability of wagons may retard inward and outward movement. Railways has also increased freight in the past which 
may recur during CY12.

• Despite sharp increase in input costs, companies may not be able to pass on the increase to the consumers because of 
increased availability and low demand of cement.

• The Company has raised debt to fund the expansion projects at Damoh and Jhansi units. High interest cost may aff ect 
the profi tability.

Outlook

• We expect cement demand to grow by 7.5% to 8.5% during CY 2012 considering the following factors :
 – It is anƟ cipated that interest rates and infl aƟ on would soŌ en and revive the demand for home loans by individual 

house builders’ segment.
 – Increase in industrial producƟ on and economic acƟ viƟ es leading to GDP growth of 7% to 8% .
 – To revive the declining GDP growth, Government is likely to speed up economic reforms and investments in 

infrastructure sector.
 – Focus on rural housing and development.

• Approx.10-15 Million t of capacity is expected to be added during CY12. (Source: Industry esƟ mates)
• Capacity uƟ lisaƟ on in Southern India is likely to remain low due to high capacity addiƟ ons.
• Given the current profi tability and return raƟ os for the new projects, it is expected that announcements for new 

capacity addiƟ ons will decrease, implying slower capacity addiƟ ons beyond 2015. This will improve capacity uƟ lisaƟ on 
and also bridge the demand supply gap.



HeidelbergCement India Limited

16

Company’s OperaƟ onal and Financial Performance

• During the year ended 31st December 2011 the Company achieved highest ever cement sales of 2.81 Million tonnes in 
its history against 2.61 Million tonnes during the previous year ended 31st December 2010.

• The Company achieved gross sales of Rs. 112662.56 lacs during the year ended 31st December 2011 against Rs. 98537.07 
lacs during the year ended 31st December 2010. Increase in revenue during CY11 is primarily on account of increase in 
realisaƟ ons / volumes over CY 2010. 

• The net profi t of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2011 was Rs. 2917.25 lacs as compared to the 
net profi t of Rs. 6,329.95 lacs during the year ended 31st December 2010. Decrease in profi t is mainly on account of 
signifi cant increase in manufacturing and operaƟ ng expenses as discussed in the Directors’ Report.

Product Performance

• In Central India, our brand “mycem” has achieved excellent customer acceptability. A recent study carried out by 
Nielsen to gauge customer saƟ sfacƟ on, bears tesƟ mony to our product performance and markeƟ ng endeavors. 

• The Company conƟ nues to be commiƩ ed to its customers and every endeavor is made to create and maintain 
unmatched customer saƟ sfacƟ on by delivering quality product at compeƟ Ɵ ve price. 

• “mycem” is steadily gaining ground in Southern markets as a premium brand. 
• All eff orts are being made to posiƟ on “mycem” as a premium brand in Western India markets of Mumbai and Pune. 

Environment

• The Company recognises the impact of its operaƟ ons on both local and global environment. The Company seeks to 
contribute to sustainable development by incorporaƟ ng environmental consideraƟ ons at every stage in business 
decision making.

• Dust suppression systems have been installed in limestone crusher and belt conveyor at Narsingarh plant. 
• Conversion of Coal Mill – 1 ESP into bag house has been done at Narsingarh plant for eff ecƟ ve control of Air 

polluƟ on.
• The Company is planning to install ConƟ nuous Stack Monitoring System and ConƟ nuous Ambient Air Quality 

Monitoring StaƟ on at all the plants so that the emission data is monitored and directly updated at the websites of 
polluƟ on control boards.

• Narsingarh and Imlai plants are directly connected to the website of MP PolluƟ on Control Board for grant of consent 
and authorisaƟ ons under Air and Water PolluƟ on Control Acts.

• Trainings on environmental legislaƟ ons have been conducted at the Company’s plants.

Risks and Concerns

• Top management monitors and reviews the risks associated with the business of the Company with respect to 
ProducƟ on, OperaƟ on, MarkeƟ ng, Regulatory Aff airs, Finance, InformaƟ on Technology and Human Resources. 

• Key risks idenƟ fi ed by the Company are rise in input costs especially coal price, over capacity in cement industry, 
shortage of railway wagons, devaluaƟ on of Rupee and high interest rates. Suffi  cient resources have been deployed in 
terms of experienced professionals, technology and processes to monitor, evaluate and manage the key risks. Suitable 
acƟ on plan is drawn up and monitored to miƟ gate the idenƟ fi ed risks.

• While systemaƟ c risk idenƟ fi caƟ on and miƟ gaƟ on framework is in place, the Company has liƩ le or virtually no control 
over certain business risks, which are external to the Company such as general down turn in market-demand due to 
adverse economic or poliƟ cal condiƟ ons, volaƟ lity in interest rates, rise in input costs, new RegulaƟ ons and Government 
policies etc.

Internal Control Systems

• The internal control system of the Company is well structured and is commensurate with the size, scale and nature 
of business. The objecƟ ve of the internal control system is to ensure effi  cient use and protecƟ on of the Company’s 
resources, accuracy in fi nancial reporƟ ng and due compliance of statutes. The Company has appointed M/s. S.S. Kothari 
Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants as its internal auditors, who evaluate the effi  cacy and adequacy of internal control 
systems, perform regular internal audits and checks to ensure that internal control systems are funcƟ oning properly 
and that responsibiliƟ es are being discharged eff ecƟ vely. Their Reports are reviewed by the Management and also by 
the Audit CommiƩ ee.
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• Internal Audit team of HeidelbergCement Group also reviews the internal control systems and Management takes 
necessary acƟ ons on their process improvement recommendaƟ ons. Wherever necessary, revised operaƟ ng procedures 
and Ɵ ghter internal and informaƟ on technology controls are implemented.

• In addiƟ on, the Company reports at the end of each quarter the criƟ cal issues that are required to be reported pursuant 
to the Risk Management Guidelines of HeidelbergCement Group.

Human Resources 

The Company recorded 1689 offi  cers and workmen on its roll as on 31st December 2011. As a step in the direcƟ on of making 
HCIL an employer of choice, following iniƟ aƟ ves were focused upon:-

• Talent Engagement & RetenƟ on :
  Reward and RecogniƟ on - Star Employee of the month/quarter/ year scheme
  Career and Succession Planning - IdenƟ fi caƟ on of high potenƟ al under Hi-pot scheme, idenƟ fying successor for 

criƟ cal role and grooming up of successor.
  Market aligned compensaƟ on
  Structured performance management system with bi-annual review process.
  CommunicaƟ on - Employee communicaƟ on meeƟ ng and open house forums
  InducƟ on, Structured monthly inducƟ on process to align the new joinees with the organisaƟ on’s culture and 

processes.

• Training & Development:
  Workmen Training
  Dealers’ Training
  Top Management Training
  SoŌ  skill training for all levels of employees
  Team bonding training
  Training on performance management system
  Technical / FuncƟ onal training

OccupaƟ onal Health & Safety

• Safety is our top priority. We forego operaƟ onal benefi ts and adherence to Ɵ me schedule if there is any cause of 
concern relaƟ ng to safety.

• Standard OperaƟ ng Procedures, containing step by step procedures for safe working have been developed for all major 
acƟ viƟ es.

• Training modules developed for diff erent programs and training is being imparted at all locaƟ ons based on theme of 
the month. Major trainings imparted include working at height, work permits, belt conveyor safety, driving and vehicle 
safety, risk assessment, good housekeeping, fi re fi ghƟ ng, behavioral safety etc.

• Guidelines on “Project Safety in construcƟ on” developed covering all types of hazards and made part of contract.
• Group Safety week was celebrated at all plants and project sites during 17th to 22nd October 2011. During the week 

pracƟ cal safety demonstraƟ ons and special safety trainings were conducted. Quizzes, Poster, Speech and Slogan 
compeƟ Ɵ ons were also organised to embed strong safety culture amongst the employees and their families.

• All Head of Departments take safety rounds for an hour in a day to ensure proper implementaƟ on of all safety control 
measures.

• All Safety offi  cers’ meet was conducted at Narsingarh during September 2011 to facilitate sharing of experiences and 
good safety pracƟ ces being observed at the plants. 

• Narsingarh Limestone Mine was awarded 3rd best in overall safety performance in the region.
• ImplementaƟ on of Lock Out Tag Out (Electrical IsolaƟ on system) at Narsingarh, Imlai and Jhansi units. Locking of 

electrical panel with padlock by the maintenance personnel before starƟ ng the job in order to prevent unintended 
release of electrical power.

• On Going acƟ viƟ es:
  ImplementaƟ on of Group Safety guidelines 
  Safety InspecƟ ons and ensuring correcƟ ve acƟ ons
  Daily Safety MeeƟ ngs
  Safety Person of the month
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• “Lost Time Injury” means work related injury which causes the absence of an employee for one or more workdays.
• Lost Time Injury incident fi gures are combined for OperaƟ ons and Projects.
• There was a major accident in November 2011 at the project site where seven contract workers got injured due to a 

technical error of a crane boom. All the injured are back in acƟ on.

Corporate Social Responsibility

• The Company is conƟ nuously pursuing Corporate Social ResponsibiliƟ es 
with focus on EducaƟ on, Healthcare and improvement of the 
surroundings. 

• Company’s schools provide educaƟ on of high standard to the children 
from surrounding rural areas.

• Medical centers at the plants as well as mobile medical vans provide 
treatment to the villagers. In addiƟ on, medical camps are also 
organised from Ɵ me to Ɵ me which have been highly appreciated by 
the people. Family welfare programs were also undertaken.

• Development acƟ viƟ es like construcƟ on of a road at Imlai village, 
cremaƟ on centre at Narsingarh village and passenger faciliƟ es at 
local bus stand were also completed.

• In order to tackle the problem of water scarcity, treated water is provided 
to the villagers of surrounding areas from the Company’s plants, wherever 
applicable. The Company has also made necessary arrangements for 
cleaning, deepening and renovaƟ ng old wells and ponds.

• Awareness was also created amongst the villagers about the need to 
protect the environment. Emphasis is also laid on plantaƟ on of trees.
Cloth bags were distributed in order to subsƟ tute the plasƟ c bags.

• With the help of social clubs, the Company has iniƟ ated various 
training programs for women and unemployed youth to improve 
their standard of living.

CauƟ onary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report which describe the Company’s objecƟ ves, projecƟ ons, 
esƟ mates, expectaƟ ons or predicƟ ons may be considered to be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of 
applicable SecuriƟ es Laws and RegulaƟ ons. These statements are based on certain assumpƟ ons and expectaƟ ons of future 
events. Actual results could however materially diff er from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a 
diff erence to the Company’s operaƟ ons include global and Indian poliƟ cal, economic and demand-supply condiƟ ons, fi nished 
goods prices, raw materials cost and availability, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in 
Government regulaƟ ons, Policies, tax regimes, economic developments within India besides other factors such as liƟ gaƟ on 
and industrial relaƟ ons as well as the ability to implement the strategies. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly 
amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent development, informaƟ on or 
events or otherwise.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Philosophy

Your Company believes that sound ethical pracƟ ces, transparency in operaƟ ons and Ɵ mely disclosures go a long way in 
enhancing long-term shareholder value while safeguarding the interest of all the stakeholders. It is this convicƟ on that has led 
the Company to make strong corporate governance values intrinsic in all its operaƟ ons. The Company is led by a disƟ nguished 
Board, which includes independent directors. The Board provides a strong oversight and strategic counsel. The Company has 
established systems and procedures to ensure that the Board of the Company is well-informed and well-equipped to fulfi ll its 
oversight responsibiliƟ es and to provide management the strategic direcƟ on it needs to create long-term shareholder value. 

In terms of clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement executed with the stock exchanges, the details of compliances, for the year 
ended 31st December 2011, are as follows :- 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composi  on of the Board 
As on 31st December 2011, the Company’s Board comprised of Ten Directors viz., eight Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors (out of 
which four are Independent Directors); a CEO & Managing Director and a WholeƟ me Director.

The Chairman of the Board is a Non-ExecuƟ ve Director. The composiƟ on of the Board is in conformity with Clause 49 of the 
LisƟ ng Agreement which sƟ pulates that: (i) not less than 50% of the Board of Directors should comprise of Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Directors; and (ii) where the Chairman of the Board is a Non-ExecuƟ ve Director not related to the promoter group, at least 
one-third of the Board should comprise of independent directors.

Number of Board Mee  ngs 

During the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011, the Board of Directors met four Ɵ mes on 11th February 2011, 29th April 
2011, 25th July 2011 and 14th October 2011. The maximum Ɵ me gap between any two consecuƟ ve board meeƟ ngs was less 
than four months.

Directors’ A  endance Record and Directorships held

COMPOSITION AND OTHER DETAILS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

S.No. Name of the Director Category/ status 
of Directorship

No. of Board 
Meetings attended 
during the period 
1.1.2011 to 
31.12.2011

No. of 
Directorship (s) 
in other 
Public Limited 
Companies*

No. of Committee 
positions held in 
other Public Limited 
Companies**

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
held in the 
Company

Sitting Fees paid 
during the period 
1.1.2011 to 
31.12.2011 
(Rs.)Chairman Member

1. Mr. P.G. Mankad, Chairman Independent 4 10 1 5 - 80,000

2. Dr. Bernd Scheifele Non-ExecuƟ ve - - - - - NA

3. Dr. Lorenz Naeger Non-ExecuƟ ve - - - - - NA

4. Mr. Amitabha Ghosh Independent 4 13 4 4 - 80,000

5. Mr. S. Krishna Kumar Independent 4 - - - - 80,000

6. Dr. Albert Scheuer Non-ExecuƟ ve 4 1 - 1 - NA

7. Mr. Pradeep V. Bhide ^ Independent 3 4 1 1 - 60,000

8. Mr. Daniel Robert Fritz ^ Non-ExecuƟ ve 3 - - - - NA

9. Mr. Ashish Guha CEO & Managing 
Director

4 3 1 1 - NA

10. Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari # WholeƟ me Director 3 1 - - - NA

  Dr. Bernd Scheifele, Dr. Lorenz Naeger, Dr. Albert Scheuer, Mr. Ashish Guha, Mr. Daniel Robert Fritz and Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari have been nominated 
on the Board of Directors of the Company by Cementrum I B.V., the sole promoter of the Company.

 ^ Mr. Pradeep V. Bhide and Mr. Daniel Robert Fritz were appointed as addiƟ onal directors by the Board w.e.f 29th April 2011. They have also been 
appointed as directors by the shareholders at the AGM held on 10th June 2011.

 # Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari was appointed as WholeƟ me Director w.e.f. 29th April 2011.

 * Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and companies under secƟ on 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 are excluded for this 
purpose.

 ** Only Audit CommiƩ ee and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance CommiƩ ee have been considered for the purpose of the CommiƩ ee posiƟ ons as per 
lisƟ ng agreement.
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The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 20,000 for attending each meeting of the Board of Directors 
as well as meetings of the Committees of the Board. The Company does not pay any remuneration or sitting fees to 
the Non-resident Directors namely, Dr. Bernd Scheifele, Dr. Lorenz Naeger, Dr. Albert Scheuer and Mr. Daniel Robert 
Fritz. The Company does not have any Stock Option Scheme or Fixed / Performance Linked Incentive Scheme for 
its Non-Executive Directors. The Company has not paid any sitting fees / remuneration to Mr. Ashish Guha, CEO & 
Managing Director.

The details of the RemuneraƟ on paid to Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, WholeƟ me Director, for the period from 29th April 2011 to 
31st December 2011 are given below :-

(Rs.)

Salary Perquisites & Allowances ContribuƟ on to PF ContribuƟ on to SuperannuaƟ on Fund Total

25,14,122 16,48,265 3,01,695 3,77,118 48,41,200

In addiƟ on to the above remuneraƟ on, Mr. S.K. Tiwari is also enƟ tled to receive remuneraƟ on by way of performance linked 
incenƟ ve. The amount of performance incenƟ ve is Rs. 21,46,200 on 100% achievement of the Company’s and individuals 
targets. Performance incenƟ ve can vary between 0% to 200% based on the individual and Company’s performance. 
Performance incenƟ ve for the year 2011 will be paid in March 2012 aŌ er evaluaƟ on of the performance of WholeƟ me 
Director against the set targets. The noƟ ce period in case of WholeƟ me Director is three months.

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel

The Board had approved a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The code 
has been displayed on the Company’s website viz., www.mycemco.com. The Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel have affi  rmed compliance with the aforesaid Code. A declaraƟ on signed by the CEO & Managing Director is 
aƩ ached and forms part of this Report.

Directors with Materially Signifi cant Pecuniary RelaƟ onships or Business TransacƟ ons with the Company

The Company does not have any pecuniary relaƟ onship with any of the Directors nor has entered into any transacƟ on, 
material or otherwise, with them except the siƫ  ng fee and payment / reimbursement of travelling expenses.

Board Level CommiƩ ees

The Company has two Board Level CommiƩ ees within the meaning of clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement – Audit CommiƩ ee 
and Shareholders’ Grievance CommiƩ ee. The Board of the Company takes all decisions with regard to consƟ tuƟ ng, 
assigning, co-opƟ ng, delegaƟ ng and fi xing the terms of reference of the CommiƩ ees. RecommendaƟ ons / decisions of the 
CommiƩ ees are submiƩ ed / informed to the Board for approval / informaƟ on. 

Audit CommiƩ ee

The Audit CommiƩ ee of the Company as on 31st December 2011, comprised of four members namely Mr. Amitabha Ghosh 
(Chairman of the CommiƩ ee), Mr. P.G. Mankad, Mr. S. Krishna Kumar and Mr. Ashish Guha. During the period 1st January 
2011 to 31st December 2011, the Audit CommiƩ ee met four Ɵ mes on 11th February 2011, 29th April 2011, 25th July 2011 
and 14th October, 2011. The Ɵ me gap between any two meeƟ ngs of the Audit CommiƩ ee was less than four months. The 
quorum for the meeƟ ngs of the Audit CommiƩ ee is one-third of the members of the CommiƩ ee, subject to a minimum of 
two independent members present at the meeƟ ng. 

The details of aƩ endance of the members and the siƫ  ng the fees paid for aƩ ending the meeƟ ngs of the Audit CommiƩ ee 
are given below :

S.No. Name of the Member No. of MeeƟ ngs AƩ ended Siƫ  ng Fees paid (Rs.)

1 Mr. Amitabha Ghosh 4 80,000

2 Mr. P.G. Mankad 4 80,000

3 Mr. S. Krishna Kumar 4 80,000

4 Mr. Ashish Guha 4 Nil
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The terms of reference and the role of the Audit CommiƩ ee is to overview the accounƟ ng systems, fi nancial reporƟ ng and 
internal controls of the Company. The powers and role of the Audit CommiƩ ee are as set out in the LisƟ ng Agreement and 
SecƟ on 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

Company Secretary is the Secretary to the CommiƩ ee. The Chief Financial Offi  cer and the representaƟ ve(s) of the Statutory 
Auditors and the Internal Auditors are invited to aƩ end the meeƟ ngs of the Audit CommiƩ ee. Mr. Amitabha Ghosh, Chairman 
of the Audit CommiƩ ee, possesses accounƟ ng and fi nancial management experƟ se and all members of the CommiƩ ee have 
accounƟ ng and fi nancial knowledge. 

Share Transfer and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance CommiƩ ee

The Share Transfer and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance CommiƩ ee of the Company as on 31st December 2011 comprised 
of three members namely Mr. P.G. Mankad (Chairman of the CommiƩ ee), Mr. Amitabha Ghosh and Mr. Ashish Guha. During 
the year, the CommiƩ ee met 16 Ɵ mes to approve the share transfer requests and other related maƩ ers. The details of 
aƩ endance of the members and the siƫ  ng fees paid for aƩ ending the meeƟ ngs of the Share Transfer and Shareholders’ / 
Investors’ Grievance CommiƩ ee are given below:

S.No. Name of the Member No. of MeeƟ ngs AƩ ended Siƫ  ng Fees paid (Rs.)

1 Mr. P.G. Mankad 14 2,80,000

2 Mr. Amitabha Ghosh  5 1,00,000

3 Mr. Ashish Guha 16 Nil

Mr. Rajesh Relan, Company Secretary is the Compliance Offi  cer of the Company. During the year one complaint was received 
from a shareholder which was resolved saƟ sfactorily. As on 31st December 2011 there are no pending investor complaints. 

RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee

The Company does not have any RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee.

Subsidiary

The Company does not have any subsidiary company. 

Management Discussion and Analysis

This Annual Report has a detailed chapter on Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Disclosures 

Wherever necessary, Senior Management makes disclosures to the Board relaƟ ng to all the material fi nancial and 
commercial transacƟ ons where they have a personal interest that may have a potenƟ al confl ict with the interest of the 
Company at large. All the related party transacƟ ons have been disclosed in the notes to the accounts of the Balance Sheet 
presented in the Annual Report. All the Directors have disclosed their interest in Form No. 24AA pursuant to SecƟ on 299 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 and as and when any changes in their interests take place, they are placed at the Board MeeƟ ngs 
for taking the same on record.

The Senior Management and the Board of Directors of the Company review the adopƟ on of the non-mandatory requirements 
under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

Disclosure of AccounƟ ng Treatment in preparaƟ on of Financial Statements

The Company has followed the accounƟ ng standards laid down by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in 
preparaƟ on of its fi nancial statements.

Details of Non-compliance by the Company in the last three years

Your Company has complied with all the requirements of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and SEBI 
RegulaƟ ons. No penalƟ es or strictures have been imposed on your Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other 
Statutory Authority in connecƟ on with violaƟ on of Capital Market norms, rules, regulaƟ ons, etc. in the last three years. 
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Risk Management

The Finance and Risk Management CommiƩ ee as on 31st December 2011 comprised of four members namely, Mr. Amitabha 
Ghosh (Chairman of the CommiƩ ee), Mr. P.G. Mankad, Mr. S. Krishna Kumar and Mr. Ashish Guha. The risk minimisaƟ on 
procedures have been put in place and are reviewed from Ɵ me to Ɵ me to ensure that the execuƟ ve management controls 
risk through means of a properly defi ned framework.

Means of CommunicaƟ on 

The quarterly and annual fi nancial results are published in English and Hindi ediƟ ons of Business Standard. 

The Quarterly / Annual Financial Results, Shareholding PaƩ erns, Annual Reports etc., are displayed on the websites of the stock 
exchanges (BSE & NSE) as well as on the Company’s website – www.mycemco.com and the same can be accessed thereat.

During the year under review no presentaƟ on was made to the InsƟ tuƟ onal Investors or Analysts.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORAMTION:

Re-appointment of Directors

Mr. P.G. Mankad, Mr. Amitabha Ghosh and Dr. Albert Scheuer, Directors of the Company retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company. While Mr. Mankad and Dr. Scheuer are eligible and have 
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Ghosh due to personal reasons has not offered 
himself for re-election.

The Board in its Report has placed on record its appreciaƟ on for the valuable guidance and support provided by Mr. Ghosh 
during his tenure. The Board has proposed that the vacancy caused by the reƟ rement of Mr. Amitabha Ghosh shall not be 
fi lled up at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng in terms of SecƟ on 256 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. P.G. Mankad and Dr. Albert Scheuer at the ensuing AGM.

The brief parƟ culars of the aforesaid Directors are given in the NoƟ ce of AGM.

General MeeƟ ngs of Shareholders

The details of the General MeeƟ ngs of the shareholders of the Company viz., Annual General MeeƟ ng (AGM) and Extra-
ordinary General MeeƟ ng (EGM) held during the last 3 years are given below:

(a) Annual General MeeƟ ngs :-

Financial Year ended Date & Time Venue

31.12.2010 10.06.2011, 9.30 A.M. Epicentre, Apparel House, Sector 44, Institutional Area, Gurgaon, 
Haryana

31.12.2009 11.05.2010, 9.00 A.M. HeidelbergCement Employees Staff  Club Auditorium, P.O. Ammasandra, 
District Tumkur, Karnataka – 572 211.

31.12.2008 29.05.2009, 9.00 A.M. HeidelbergCement Employees Staff  Club Auditorium, P.O. Ammasandra, 
District Tumkur, Karnataka – 572 211.

Mr. Amitabha Ghosh, Director and Chairman of the Audit CommiƩ ee; Mr. S. Krishna Kumar, Director; Mr. Pradeep V. Bhide, 
Director; Mr. Ashish Guha, CEO & Managing Director and Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, WholeƟ me Director of the Company were 
present at the last AGM held on 10th June 2011. 

(b) Other meeƟ ngs of shareholders :-

ParƟ culars Date & Time Venue

EGM 19-03-2009, 9.00 A.M. Mysore Cements Employees Staff  Club Auditorium, P.O. Ammasandra, 
District Tumkur, Karnataka – 572 211.

No Special ResoluƟ on was passed at any of the last three AGMs. However, at the EGM held on 19th March 2009 the 
shareholders had passed a Special ResoluƟ on for increase of the Authorised Share Capital by Rs. 9 crores i.e, from Rs. 271 
crores to Rs. 280 crores. 
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Postal Ballot 

During the year under review the Company has not passed any ResoluƟ on through Postal Ballot. It may be further noted 
that no resoluƟ on is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot before the ensuing AGM.

Annual General MeeƟ ng

Date : 25th April 2012  
Day : Wednesday 
Time : 9.30 A.M.
Venue :  Epicentre, Apparel House,
 Sector 44, InsƟ tuƟ onal Area, Gurgaon, Haryana

Financial Calendar for 2012

The Company follows the calendar year for the preparaƟ on of its accounts. Proposed Board MeeƟ ngs for taking on record 
quarterly fi nancial results for the accounƟ ng year 2012 are as under:

Approval of the fi nancial results for the quarter ending 31st March 2012, 
30th June 2012 and 30th September 2012.

Within 45 days from the end of the 
respecƟ ve quarter.

Audited annual fi nancial results for fi nancial year ending 31st December 2012. Within 60 days from the end of the 
year.

AGM for the fi nancial year ending 31st December 2012. : April to June 2013.

Book Closure: 17th April 2012 to 25th April 2012 (both days inclusive)

Dividend  : Nil

Stock Exchanges where shares are listed Stock Code / Trading Symbol
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) 500292
NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) Heidelberg

There are no arrears of listing fees to be paid to the Stock Exchanges.

Share Price Data 

Share Price of HeidelbergCement India Ltd. at BSE & NSE during the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011.

 BSE NSE

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)

January 45.70 35.45 45.50 35.25

February 40.80 33.05 41.00 33.00

March 44.35 32.25 44.60 32.00

April 54.00 42.65 54.70 43.00

May 50.15 41.05 50.85 41.00

June 43.70 36.65 43.30 36.00

July 40.40 35.65 39.75 35.30

August 37.00 31.25 39.50 30.10

September 40.15 32.90 39.90 32.90

October 37.20 33.20 36.75 33.15

November 35.35 28.60 35.40 28.25

December 30.65 25.05 30.60 24.65
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Comparison of Share Price of HeidelbergCement India Ltd. with BSE Sensex
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Shareholding PaƩ ern as on 31st December 2011

Category No. of Equity Shares % of Equity share holding
Promoters 15,53,40,196 68.55
Mutual Funds & UTI 49,96,757 2.20
Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons & Banks 17,244 0.01
Central /State Government 3,28,440 0.14
Insurance Companies 36,08,864 1.59
FIIs 1,48,67,703 6.56
NRIs & OCBs 13,75,545 0.61
Bodies Corporate 1,23,20,530 5.44
Trusts 8,59,488 0.38
Resident Individuals 3,28,98,349 14.52
Total 22,66,13,116 100.00

DistribuƟ on Schedule of Equity Shares as on 31st December 2011

No. of equity shares of Rs. 10 each No. of shareholders % of shareholders No. of shares held % of shareholding
1-500 47614 83.03 8218560 3.63
501-1000 5142 8.97 4372163 1.93
1001-2000 2255 3.93 3591148 1.58
2001-3000 772 1.35 2030433 0.90
3001-4000 311 0.54 1139342 0.50
4001-5000 357 0.62 1717523 0.76
5001-10000 456 0.79 3518881 1.55
10001 and above 441 0.77 202025066 89.15
Total 57348 100.00 226613116 100.00

DematerialisaƟ on of shares and liquidity 

The Equity Shares of the Company are acƟ vely traded at BSE and NSE in dematerialised form. InternaƟ onal SecuriƟ es 
IdenƟ fi caƟ on Number (ISIN) for both the depositories, viz., NSDL and CDSL is INE578A01017. As on 31st December 2011, 
98.82% of the Equity Shares of the Company were held in dematerialised form. The shareholders who wish to get their 
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shares dematerialised can submit the share cerƟ fi cates together with the Demat Request Form to the Depository ParƟ cipant 
with whom they have opened a demat account. 

Share Transfer System
The shareholders who wish to transfer their shares held in physical form can lodge the duly completed request for registraƟ on 
of transfer of shares with M/s. Integarted Enterprises (India) Ltd., Bangalore. In case of transfer of shares, deleƟ on of name 
of deceased shareholder, transmission or transposiƟ on of names in respect of shares held in physical form it is mandatory 
to submit photocopy of PAN Card of the transferee(s), surviving holder(s), legal heir(s) and joint holder(s) respecƟ vely along 
with the request for transfer, transmission or transposiƟ on.

The duly transferred Share CerƟ fi cates are normally returned to the shareholders within a period of 20 to 25 days from the 
date of lodgement. 

Outstanding warrants and their implicaƟ ons on equity 
As on 31st December 2011, there are no outstanding GDRs, ADRs, converƟ ble warrants or any other instruments converƟ ble 
into equity shares, issued by the Company. 

Addresses for correspondence 
Registered Offi  ce: Registrar & Share Transfer Agents: 
HeidelbergCement India Ltd. Integrated Enterprises (India) Ltd.
9th Floor, Tower ‘C ’, Infi nity Towers (Unit: HeidelbergCement India Ltd.)
DLF Cyber City, Phase II 30, Ramana Residency,
Gurgaon, Haryana - 122002 4th Cross, Sampige Road,
Phone Nos. : 0124 – 4503700 Malleswaram, 
Fax No : 0124 – 4147698 Bangalore - 560 003, Karnataka
E-mail-Ids : investors.mcl@mycem.in Phone Nos. : 080-23460815 to 23460818
rajesh.relan@heidelbergcement.in Fax No : 080-23460819
 E-mail-Ids : vijayagopal@integratedindia.in
 alfi nt@vsnl.com

Plant LocaƟ ons

(a) HeidelbergCement India Ltd. (b) Diamond Cements
 P.O. Ammasandra   (Unit of HeidelbergCement India Ltd.)
 DisƩ . Tumkur  P.O. Narsingarh
 Karnataka - 572 211  District Damoh
   Madhya Pradesh - 470 675

(c) Diamond Cements (d) Diamond Cements
 (Unit of HeidelbergCement India Ltd.)  (Unit of HeidelbergCement India Ltd.)
 Village Imlai  Village Madora
 District Damoh   District Jhansi
 Madhya Pradesh - 470 661  UƩ ar Pradesh - 284 121

(e) HeidelbergCement India Ltd.
 Village Khar Karavi, P.O. Gadab, 
 Taluka Pen, District Raigad, 
 Maharashtra - 402 107

Affi  rmaƟ on of Compliance with the Code of Business Conduct for Directors and Senior ExecuƟ ves 

I declare that the Company has received affi  rmaƟ on of compliance with the “Code of Business Conduct for Directors and 
Senior ExecuƟ ves” laid down by the Board of Directors, from all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company, to whom the same is applicable, for the fi nancial year ended 31st December 2011.

 Sd/-
Place: Gurgaon Ashish Guha 
Date: 13th February 2012 CEO & Managing Director
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CLAUSE 49 OF LISTING AGREEMENT

To 

The Members of HeidelbergCement India Ltd.

We have examined the compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance by HeidelbergCement India Ltd. for the fi nancial 
year ended 31st December 2011, as sƟ pulated in the LisƟ ng Agreement of the said Company with Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited and NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examinaƟ on was limited 
to the procedures and implementaƟ on thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟ ons of 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the fi nancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, we cerƟ fy that the Company 
has complied with the condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated in the above menƟ oned LisƟ ng Agreements.

We state that during the year one complaint was received from a shareholder which was resolved saƟ sfactorily. As on 
31st December 2011 there are no pending investor complaints.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the effi  ciency or 
eff ecƟ veness with which the Management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

  For Nityanand Singh & Co.
 Company Secretaries

 Sd/-
 Nityanand Singh   
Place: New Delhi Proprietor
Date : 13th February 2012 FCS No. 2668 CP No. 2388  

Disclosure pursuant to RegulaƟ on 10(1) of the SEBI(SubstanƟ al AcquisiƟ on of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟ ons, 2011 of 
persons consƟ tuƟ ng ‘Group’ include the following:- 

Promoters and persons acƟ ng in concert: Cementrum I B.V., HeidelbergCement AG., HeidelbergCement Asia Pte Ltd., 
CBR InternaƟ onal Services S.A., Castle Cement Ltd., CBR BalƟ c B.V., CBR Portland B.V., Civil and Marine Slag Cement Ltd., 
Bukhtarmipskaya Cement Company, Carpatcement Holding S.A., Cementa AB, Ceskomoravsky Cement, a.s, Duna-Drava 
Cement KŌ , ENCI Holding N.V., Gorazdze Cement S.A., Hanson Ltd., CaucasusCement Holding B.V., HeidelbergCement 
Central Europe East Holding B.V., HeidelbergCement Danmark A/S, HeidelbergCement InternaƟ onal Holding GmbH, 
HeidelbergCement Netherlands Holding B.V., HeidelbergCement Northern Europe AB, HeidelbergCement Norway a.s., 
HeidelbergCement Sweden AB, HeidelbergCement UK Holding Ltd., HeidelbergCement Ukraine, Kunda Nordic Cement 
Corp., Norcem AS, S.A. Cimenteries CBR, Tvornica Cementa Kakanj d.d., Civil and Marine Inc., HeidelbergCement Inc., 
Lehigh B.V., Lehigh Hanson Materials Limited, Lehigh Southwest Cement Company, Permanente Cement Company, Butra 
HeidelbergCement Sdn. Bhd., Cimbenin S.A., Ciments du Togo S.A., Cochin Cements Ltd., Ghacem Ltd., HeidelbergCement 
Bangladesh Ltd., Liberia Cement CorporaƟ on Ltd., PT Indocement Tunggal Prakarsa Tbk, Scancem InternaƟ onal DA, Sierra 
Leone Cement Corp. Ltd., Cimgabon S.A., TPCC Tanzania Portland Cement Company Ltd., HC Trading B.V., HC Trading Malta 
Ltd. and HC Fuels Limited. 
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Auditors’ Report
To 
The Members of HeidelbergCement India Limited

 1. We have audited the aƩ ached Balance Sheet of HeidelbergCement India Limited (‘the Company’) as at December 
31, 2011 and also the Profi t and Loss account and the Cash Flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed 
thereto. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit.

 2. We conducted our audit in accordance with audiƟ ng standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporƟ ng the amounts and disclosures 
in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounƟ ng principles used and signifi cant esƟ mates 
made by management, as well as evaluaƟ ng the overall fi nancial statement presentaƟ on. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-secƟ on (4A) of SecƟ on 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the 
maƩ ers specifi ed in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

 4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

  i.  We have obtained all the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

  ii.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 
our examinaƟ on of those books;

  iii.  The balance sheet, profi t and loss account and cash fl ow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

  iv.  In our opinion, the balance sheet, profi t and loss account and cash fl ow statement dealt with by this report comply 
with the accounƟ ng standards referred to in sub-secƟ on (3C) of secƟ on 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

  v.  On the basis of the wriƩ en representaƟ ons received from the directors, as on December 31, 2011, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on December 31, 2011 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-secƟ on (1) of secƟ on 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

  vi.  In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the said accounts 
give the informaƟ on required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India;

   a)  in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at December 31, 2011;

   b)  in the case of the profi t and loss account, of the profi t for the year ended on that date; and

   c) in the case of cash fl ow statement, of the cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Firm registraƟ on number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

per Manoj Gupta      
Partner   
Membership No.: 83906 

Place: Gurgaon
Date: February 13, 2012
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
Re: HeidelbergCement India Limited (‘the Company’)

 (i) (a)   The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟ culars, including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situaƟ on 
of fi xed assets. 

  (b)   All fi xed assets have not been physically verifi ed by the management during the year but there is a regular 
programme of verifi caƟ on which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noƟ ced on such verifi caƟ on. 

  (c)  There was no disposal of a substanƟ al part of fi xed assets during the year.
 (ii) (a)   The management has conducted physical verifi caƟ on of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year.
  (b)   The procedures of physical verifi caƟ on of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 

relaƟ on to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.
  (c)  The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noƟ ced on physical 

verifi caƟ on.
 (iii) (a)   According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 

or unsecured to companies, fi rms or other parƟ es covered in the register maintained under secƟ on 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(iii)(a) to (d) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

  (b)   According to informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, 
from companies, fi rms or other parƟ es covered in the register maintained under secƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(iii)(e) to (g) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon.

 (iv)   In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fi xed assets 
and for sale of goods. The acƟ viƟ es of the Company do not include sale of services. During the course of our audit, no 
major weakness has been noƟ ced in the internal control system in respect of these areas. During the course of our audit, 
we have not observed any conƟ nuing failure to correct major weakness in internal control system of the company.

 (v)   In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the register maintained under 
SecƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Therefore, provision of clause 4(v) (b) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (as amended) is not applicable to the Company.

 (vi)   The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
 (vii)   In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
 (viii)   We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the 

Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under secƟ on 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, 
related to the manufacture of cement and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained.

 (ix) (a)  The Company is regular in deposiƟ ng with appropriate authoriƟ es undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, investor educaƟ on and protecƟ on fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, 
service tax, customs duty, excise duty and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

  (b)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, investor educaƟ on and protecƟ on fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, 
sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

  (c)  According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, 
customs duty, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Statute Nature of dues Amount
(Rs. in lacs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

Central Sales Tax Act and 
Various State Sales Tax Act 

Sales Tax 623.89 1998-99 to 2004-05 Supreme Court

7915.90 1994-95 to 2009-10 High Court
413.79 1995-98 to 2002-03,2005-06 to 2009-10 Tribunal

45.32 1989-90 to 1992-93 and 2000-02 Deputy Commissioner (Appeals)
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Name of Statute Nature of dues Amount
(Rs. in lacs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

63.30 1984-85 Deputy Commissioner
0.11 2000-01 AddiƟ onal Commissioner

57.00 1999-00 to 2002-03 Joint Commissioner
1.27 1997-98, 2002-03 and 2003-04 Assessing Offi  cer, Sales Tax
5.84 2004-05 Trade Tax Department 

Income Tax Act Income Tax 27.49 2007-08 Income Tax Tribunal
Central Excise Act Excise Duty and 

Cenvat
79.69 2007-08 Supreme Court

218.66 1995-96 to 2000-01 High Court
380.20 1992-93, 1996-97 and 1999-2000 to 

2003-04 and 2007-08
Central Excise and Service Tax Tribunal

48.44 2005-06 and 2007-08 Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeal)
Finance Act 1994 
(Amended - 2009)

Service Tax 14.02 2004-05 and 2009-10 Commissioner of Central Excise

 (x)   The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the fi nancial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the 
current and immediately preceding fi nancial year.

 (xi)   Based on our audit procedures and as per the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given by the management, we are of 
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The Company has no outstanding 
dues in respect of debenture holder and fi nancial insƟ tuƟ on.

 (xii)   According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and based on the documents and records produced 
to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
debentures and other securiƟ es.

 (xiii)   In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefi t fund / society. Therefore, the provisions 
of clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

 (xiv)   In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securiƟ es, debentures and other investments. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not 
applicable to the Company.

 (xv)   According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from bank or fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons.

 (xvi)   Based on informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose 
for which the loans were obtained, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate uƟ lizaƟ on 
have been gainfully invested in liquid investments payable on demand. The maximum amount of idle/surplus 
funds invested during the year was Rs. 21,950 lacs of which Rs. 21,950 lacs were outstanding at the end of the year.

 (xvii)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and on an overall examinaƟ on of the balance sheet of 
the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

 (xviii)  The Company has not made any preferenƟ al allotment of shares to parƟ es or companies covered in the register 
maintained under secƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

 (xix)   The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.
 (xx)   The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.
 (xxi)   Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporƟ ng the true and fair view of the fi nancial 

statements and as per the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given by the management, we report that no fraud on or 
by the Company has been noƟ ced or reported during the year.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm RegistraƟ on No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
per Manoj Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 83906 

Place: Gurgaon
Date: February 13, 2012
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Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2011

Schedules December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs 

SOURCES OF FUNDS Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital A 22,662.21 22,662.21 
Reserves and Surplus B 58,896.20 55,663.42 
Loan Funds
Unsecured Loans C 77,691.18  -   

Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es (net) D 3,308.83 3,012.02 

          Total 162,558.42 81,337.65

APPLICATION OF FUNDS Fixed Assets E
Gross Block 98,987.02 94,945.81 
Less: Accumulated DepreciaƟ on  64,483.54 62,213.70 
Net Block 34,503.48 32,732.11 
Capital Work-in-Progress including Capital Advances 
(Note 3 of Schedule S)

110,829.46 42,796.60 

145,332.94 75,528.71 

Intangible Assets E
Net Block 258.75 312.75 
Capital Work-in-Progress  -   19.42 

 258.75 332.17 

Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories F 11,070.16 7,115.42 
Sundry Debtors G 2,427.26 2,428.27 
Cash and Bank Balances H 31,070.63 21,948.78 
Other Current Assets I 65.26 156.09 
Loans and Advances J 25,334.86 14,662.95 

(I)     69,968.17 46,311.51 

Less: Current LiabiliƟ es and Provisions
Current LiabiliƟ es K 41,785.14 29,998.90 
Provisions L 11,216.30 10,835.84 

(II)     53,001.44  40,834.74 
Net Current Assets (I-II)     16,966.73  5,476.77 
           Total 162,558.42 81,337.65 
Notes to Accounts S  

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date
For S R Batliboi & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
   HeidelbergCement India Limited

Firm RegistraƟ on No. 301003E 
Chartered Accountants

  Sd/- Sd/-
Anil Kumar Sharma

Chief Financial Offi  cer

Sd/-
P.G. Mankad

Chairman

Sd/-
Ashish Guha

CEO & Managing Director

Sd/-
Dr. Albert Scheuer

Director
Per Manoj Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 83906

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurgaon Rajesh Relan Pradeep V. Bhide
Date: February 13, 2012 Company Secretary Director

Sd/-
S.Krishna Kumar

Director

Sd/-
Daniel R. Fritz

Director
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  Sd/- Sd/-
Anil Kumar Sharma

Chief Financial Offi  cer

Sd/-
P.G. Mankad

Chairman

Sd/-
Ashish Guha

CEO & Managing Director

Sd/-
Dr. Albert Scheuer

Director
Per Manoj Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 83906

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurgaon Rajesh Relan Pradeep V. Bhide
Date: February 13, 2012 Company Secretary Director

Profi t and Loss Account
for the Year ended December 31, 2011

Schedules December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010 
Rs. in Lacs

INCOME Gross Sales 112,662.56 98,537.07 
Less: Excise Duty (14,398.07)  (11,983.21)
Net Sales 98,264.49 86,553.86 
Other Income M 1,712.81  3,008.30 
            Total 99,977.30  89,562.16 

EXPENDITURE
Raw Materials Consumed N 23,092.38 21,037.85 
Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories O 310.64 102.21 
Personnel Expenses P 7,855.40 6,467.20 
OperaƟ ng and Other Expenses Q 60,958.91 49,054.08 
DepreciaƟ on/amorƟ zaƟ on E 3,298.44 3,110.89 
Less: Transferred from RevaluaƟ on Reserve 158.56 226.01 
Net DepreciaƟ on/amorƟ zaƟ on 3,139.88 2,884.88 
Financial Expenses R 383.75 421.31 

            Total 95,740.96  79,967.53 

Profi t for the year before Tax 4,236.34 9,594.63 
Provision for Tax
Current tax (1,128.83) (1,899.56)
Less: MAT credit enƟ tlement 106.55  -   
Net Current Tax Liability (1,022.28) (1,899.56)  
Deferred Tax Charge (296.81) (1,365.12)
Total Tax Expenses (1,319.09)  (3,264.68)

Net Profi t for the year aŌ er tax 2,917.25 6,329.95 
Balance brought forward from previous year 9,707.53 4,777.75 
Profi t available for appropriaƟ on 12,624.78 11,107.70 

AppropriaƟ ons:
Interim Dividend on Preference Shares  - (43.59)
Tax on Interim Dividend on Preference Shares  - (7.24) 
Transfer to Capital RedempƟ on Reserve  - (1,349.34) 
Profi t carried to Balance Sheet 12,624.78  9,707.53 

Earnings Per Share (Refer Note No. 13 of Schedule S)
Basic and Diluted [Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/- (Previous Year Rs. 10/-)] 1.29 2.77 
Notes to Accounts S

The schedules referred to above and notes to accounts form an integral part of the Profi t and Loss Account

As per our report of even date
For S R Batliboi & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of HeidelbergCement India Limited

Firm RegistraƟ on No. 301003E 
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
     S. Krishna Kumar 

Director

Sd/-
Daniel R. Fritz

Director
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Schedules
to the Accounts

Schedule A: 
Share Capital

December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs 

Authorised
230,000,000 (Previous year: 230,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 23,000.00 23,000.00

5,000,000 (Previous year: 5,000,000) preference shares of Rs. 100/- 
each

5,000.00 5,000.00

28,000.00 28,000.00

Issued
226,631,309 (Previous year: 226,631,309) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 22,663.13 22,663.13

Subscribed and Paid-Up
226,613,116 (Previous year: 226,613,116) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 22,661.31 22,661.31

18,193 Amount paid-up on 18,193 Shares Forfeited 0.90 0.90
22,662.21 22,662.21

 
 i.  Of the above 155,340,196 (Previous Year: 155,340,196) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each are held by Cementrum I B.V, the 

holding company. The ultimate holding company is HeidelbergCement AG.

 ii. Equity Shares include 1,422,235 (Previous Year: 1,422,235) shares of Rs. 10/- each alloƩ ed as fully paid-up Bonus Shares 
by capitalisaƟ on of General Reserve.

 iii. Equity shares include 67,721,681 (Previous Year: 67,721,681) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each issued as fully paid up to the 
shareholders of erstwhile Indorama Cement Ltd. and 881,670 (Previous Year: 881,670) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each issued 
as fully paid to the shareholders of erstwhile HeidelbergCement India Pvt. Ltd. pursuant to the scheme of amalgamaƟ on for 
consideraƟ on other than cash. 

 

Schedule B: 
Reserves and 
Surplus

Capital Reserve

As per Last Accounts 5,496.92 5,496.92
   

 Capital Subsidy Reserve
 As per Last Accounts 64.25 64.25

 Security Premium
 As per Last Accounts 37,071.23 37,071.23

 RevaluaƟ on Reserve
 Opening Balance 1,724.15 1,950.16

  Less: Adjustment on account of 
depreciation on revalued amount of assets 158.56 1,565.59 226.01 1,724.15

  
 Capital RedempƟ on Reserve

Opening Balance 1,599.34 250.00
 Additions during the year  -    1,599.34 1,349.34 1,599.34

  
Hedging Reserve Account  (Refer Note no. 9 
of Schedule S)

474.09 0.00

 Profi t and Loss Account 12,624.78 9,707.53 
 
  58,896.20 55,663.42
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Schedule C: 
Unsecured Loans

December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs

Term loan from Banks 30,000.00  -   
(Secured by 100% uncondiƟ onal and irrevocable Corporate
Guarantee of HeidelbergCement AG, Germany, the ulƟ mate holding 
company)
External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) from Cementrum I B. V., the 
holding company 47,691.18  -    

77691.18 -

Due within one year Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil).

Schedule D: 
Deferred Tax 
Liability (net)

Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es
Diff erences in depreciaƟ on and other diff erences in block of fi xed 
assets as per tax books and fi nancial books 4,314.94 4,310.34
Eff ect of expenditure allowed for tax purposes in the current year/ 
earlier years but will be debited to profi t and loss account in the 
following years 934.15 773.63
Gross Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es 5,249.09 5,083.97
Deferred Tax Assets
Eff ect of expenditure debited to profi t and loss account in the 
current year but allowable for tax purposes in following years 1,814.85 1,934.74
Provision for doubƞ ul debts and advances 125.41 137.21
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 1,940.26 2,071.95

Net Deferred Tax Liability 3,308.83 3,012.02

Schedule E. Fixed Assets
Rs. in Lacs 

           

 GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

 As at
01.01.2011

AddiƟ ons/
Adjustments

Sales/
Adjustments

As at
31.12.2011

At
01.01.2011

Sales/
Adjustments

For the
Year *

At
31.12.2011

As at
31.12.2011

As at
31.12.2010

Tangible Assets- (A)

Freehold Land 2,077.42 473.19  - 2,550.61  -  -  -  - 2,550.61 2,077.42

Leasehold Land 153.51 64.27  - 217.78 131.36  - 9.27 140.63 77.15 22.15

Buildings 9,059.37 242.40 13.51 9,288.26 3,107.44 7.70 208.49 3,308.23 5,980.03 5,951.93

Railway Siding 1,241.21 19.77 86.85 1,174.13 1,000.83 72.64 48.60 976.79 197.34 240.38

Plant and Machinery 80,163.81 4,104.45 923.58 83,344.68 56,932.45 870.45 2,699.04 58,761.04 24,583.64 23,231.36

Furniture, Fiƫ  ngs and 
Equipments 1,370.12 167.08 58.92 1,478.28 646.22 40.74 235.16 840.64 637.64 723.90

Vehicles 880.37 83.13 30.22 933.28 395.40 28.32 89.13 456.21 477.07 484.97

Sub Total 94,945.81 5,154.29 1,113.08 98,987.02 62,213.70 1,019.85 3,289.69 64,483.54 34,503.48 32,732.11

Previous Year 91,318.66 4,544.37 917.22 94,945.81 59,960.68 825.41 3,078.43 62,213.70 32,732.11 31,357.98

Intangible Assets- (B)
Acquired Computer 470.63 39.44  - 510.07 157.88  - 93.44 251.32 258.75 312.75

SoŌ ware

Sub Total 470.63 39.44  - 510.07 157.88  - 93.44 251.32 258.75 312.75

Previous Year 353.86 116.77  - 470.63 85.99  - 71.89 157.88 312.75 267.87

TOTAL (A+B) 95,416.44 5,193.73 1,113.08 99,497.09 62,371.58 1,019.85 3,383.13 64,734.86 34,762.23 33,044.86

Previous Year 91,672.52 4,661.14 917.22 95,416.44 60,046.67 825.41 3,150.32 62,371.58 33,044.86 – 

Notes:  

(a)  Certain Fixed Assets were revalued based on current replacement cost by approved valuers on 1.7.1981, 31.3.1990 and  31.3.1992. These had resulted in increase in book value of fi xed assets by 
Rs.26,330.06 lacs (gross) and accumulated depreciaƟ on by Rs.4,752.78 lacs resulƟ ng in net increase of Rs.21,577.28 lacs which were credited to RevaluaƟ on Reserve.

(b)  Gross Block of Freehold Land, Building, Railway Siding and Plant and Machinery include Rs.288.68 lacs (Previous Year Rs.288.68 lacs), Rs.2,066.58 lacs (Previous Year Rs.2,068.30 lacs), Rs.161.95 lacs (Previous 
Year Rs.175.66 lacs) and Rs.15,737.96 lacs (Previous Year Rs.16,136.50 lacs) respecƟ vely on account of revaulaƟ on. Further Accumulated DepreciaƟ on of Building, Railway Siding and Plant and Machinery 
include Rs.1,120.65 Lacs (Previous Year Rs.1,084.06 lacs), Rs.160.19 lacs (Previous Year Rs.166.90 lacs) and Rs.15,408.74 lacs (Previous Year Rs.15,694.04 lacs) respecƟ vely on account of revaulaƟ on.

(c)  DepreciaƟ on for the year includes Rs.158.56 lacs (Previous year: Rs.226.01 lacs) in respect of  increased value of Fixed Assets due to revaluaƟ on and an equivalent amount has been transferred from 
RevaluaƟ on Reserve.

* DepreciaƟ on of Rs. 84.69 lacs  (Previous Year: Rs.39.43 lacs) has been tranferred to expenditure during construcƟ on period. Refer Note No.3 of Schedule S.
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Schedule F: 
Inventories 
(at lower of 
cost and net 
realisable value 
except scrap stock 
which is valued at 
NRV)

December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs 

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs

Raw Materials (including Stock in Transit Rs.54.97 lacs 
(Previous year: Rs.54.26 lacs)) 5,103.94 1,402.41
Stores and Spares (including Stock in Transit Rs.146.09 lacs 
(Previous year:Rs.Nil)) 3,232.12 2,717.13
Packing Materials (including Stock in Transit Rs.18.29 lacs 
(Previous year:Rs.Nil)) 100.86 52.00
Stock in Process 1,099.29 1,257.16
Scrap Stock 116.52 173.38
Finished Goods (including Stock in Transit Rs.22.05 lacs 
(Previous year: Rs.233.88 lacs)) 1,417.43 1,513.34

11,070.16 7,115.42

Schedule G: 
Sundry Debtors Unsecured

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

 Considered good 293.95 566.01

 Considered Doubƞ ul 291.68 366.22

Other Debts

 Considered good 2,133.31 1,862.26

2,718.94 2,794.49

Less: Provision for Doubƞ ul Debts 291.68 366.22

2,427.26 2,428.27

Included in Sundry Debtors are:

 -  Dues from Company under the Same Management: 
Cochin Cements Limited 55.59  -    

Schedule H: 
Cash and Bank 
Balances Cash on hand 11.69 7.04

Cheques on hand 308.60 82.92
Balances with Scheduled Banks:
On Current Accounts 1,630.34 1,359.59
On Deposit Accounts 29,120.00 20,499.23

31,070.63 21,948.78

Schedule I: Other 
Current Assets Interest accrued on deposits and others 65.26 136.73

UnamorƟ sed Premium on Forward Contracts  -    19.36
65.26 156.09

Schedules
to the Accounts
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Schedule J: 
Loans & 
Advances

December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs

Unsecured
Considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 1,307.67 822.45
VAT credit (Input) receivable 69.80 47.54
Balances with customs, excise, etc. 2,590.93 779.82
Deposits with Government Departments and Others 14,391.12 11,696.69
Advance Income Tax/ Tax Deducted at Source (Net of 
Provision Rs. 4,807.34 lacs (Previous year: Rs. 3,903.27 lacs)) 606.89 785.13
MAT Credit EnƟ tlement 414.45 531.32
DerivaƟ ve Assets* 5,954.00  -   

Considered Doubƞ ul
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 94.33 61.70
Deposits with Government Departments and Others 0.52 0.52

25,429.71 14,725.17
Less: Provision for Doubƞ ul Advances 94.85 62.22

25,334.86 14,662.95
*Refer Note no.9 of Schedule S

Schedule K: 
Current 
LiabiliƟ es

Sundry Creditors
a) Dues of Micro and Small Enterprise* 240.33 193.88
b) Dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprise 28,101.64 19,555.17

Advance from Customers 2,398.51 2,056.58
Trade Deposits 7,313.13 5,626.17
Book OverdraŌ  from Banks 293.31 305.16
Forward Contracts  -   70.58
Interest Accrued but not due on Loans from Banks and 
others**

533.51  -    

Other LiabiliƟ es 2,904.71 2,191.36
41,785.14 29,998.90

* Refer Note No.15 of Schedule S
**  includes Rs. 404.48 lacs payable to Cementrum I B.V., the 

holding company

Schedule L: 
Provisions Provision for Wealth Tax 0.61 1.05

Provision for Leave Encashment 547.50 496.44
Provision for Gratuity* 1,249.12 1,174.90
Provision for LiƟ gaƟ ons** 9,419.07 9,163.45

11,216.30 10,835.84
* Refer Note No. 12 of Schedule S
** Refer Note No. 8 (b) of Schedule S

Schedules
to the Accounts
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Schedule M: 
Other Income

December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs

Interest (gross) 
Bank Deposits (TDS Rs.69.35 lacs 
(Previous year: Rs.154.93 lacs))

712.07 1,670.45

Others (TDS Rs.7.66 lacs (Previous year: Rs.9.70 lacs)) 96.63 91.68
Rent 25.18 24.61
Profi t on sale of Long Term Non Trade Investment  -    108.00
Scrap Sale 530.28 391.23
Profi t on Sale of Fixed Assets 8.28 22.43
Provision/LiabiliƟ es no longer required wriƩ en back 119.56 440.63
Exchange Rate Diff erence (net)  -    33.90
Miscellaneous Income 220.81 225.37

1,712.81 3,008.30

Schedule N: 
Raw Materials 
Consumed

Opening Inventories 1,402.41 839.23
Add: Purchases and Lime stone raising cost 26,793.91 21,601.03

28,196.32 22,440.26
Less: Closing Inventories 5,103.94 1,402.41

23,092.38 21,037.85

Schedule O: 
Decrease/ 
(Increase) in 
Inventories

Closing Inventories
Finished Goods 1,417.43 1,513.34
Stock-in-Process 1,099.29 1,257.16
Scrap 116.52 173.38

2,633.24 2,943.88
Opening Inventories
Finished Goods 1,513.34 835.68
Stock-in-Process 1,257.16 2,149.12
Scrap 173.38 61.29

2,943.88 3,046.09
  

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 310.64 102.21

Schedule P: 
Personnel 
Expenses Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 6,813.49 5,592.98

ContribuƟ on to Provident Fund 423.68 357.40
Gratuity Expenses (Refer note 12 of Schedule S) 229.65 210.30
Other Post Employment Funds 44.23 40.80
Workmen & Staff  Welfare Expenses 344.35 265.72

7,855.40 6,467.20

Schedules
to the Accounts
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Schedule Q: 
OperaƟ ng and 
Other Expenses

December 31, 2011
Rs. in Lacs

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs

Stores and Spares 3,879.28 3,621.05
Packing Materials Consumed 4,008.49 3,286.64
Increase/(Decrease) of Excise duty  on Inventories (25.11) 129.29
Power and Fuel 25,919.89 19,462.37
Freight and Forwarding 13,766.30 11,542.31
Rent 233.99 218.21
Rates and Taxes 3,265.88 2,852.69
Insurance 91.80 93.94
Repairs and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 863.06 821.44
- Buildings 424.17 244.39
- Others 41.11 59.07
Commission on Sales 3,303.03 2418.89
Other Selling Expenses 540.31 491.31
AdverƟ sements 844.18 711.71
Travelling & Conveyance 506.99 363.78
CommunicaƟ on Cost 183.63 193.37
Legal & Professional fees 183.36 161.45
Technical Knowhow Fees 1,578.93 1385.42
Directors’ Fees 9.20 9.80
Auditor’s remuneraƟ on * 103.57 109.42
Exchange Rate Diff erence (net)  
Less: Gain on derivaƟ ve # 55.38  - 
Provision for Doubƞ ul Debts and Advances 37.85 4.65
Loss on Fixed Assets discarded 75.42  - 
Loss on Fixed Asset Sold 16.29 76.07
Provision for Wealth Tax 0.61 0.96
Sundry Balances wriƩ en off 15.56 3.65
Provision for Obsolescence of raw materials 112.50  - 
Miscellaneous Expenses 923.24 792.20

60,958.91 49,054.08

* Refer Note No. 14 of Schedule S
# Refer Note No. 9 of Schedule S

Schedule R: 
Financial 
Expenses

Interest
- on Term Loans  -    6.95
- on Others 211.94 279.75
Bank Charges & Guarantee Commission 171.81 134.61

383.75 421.31

6,348.56
6,293.18
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Schedule S: Notes to Accounts

 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
  HeidelbergCement India Limited (hereinaŌ er referred to as “HCIL” or “the Company”) is a Company formed and 

registered under the Companies Act, 1956. The principal acƟ vity of HCIL is the manufacture of Portland cement at its four 
locaƟ ons viz. Ammasandra (Karnataka), Damoh (Madhya Pradesh), Jhansi (UƩ ar Pradesh) and Raigad (Maharashtra).

 2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of PreparaƟ on
The fi nancial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the NoƟ fi ed AccounƟ ng 
Standard by the Companies AccounƟ ng Standards Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The fi nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenƟ on on an 
accrual basis except in case of assets for which provision for impairment is made and revaluaƟ on is carried out. The 
accounƟ ng policies are consistent with those used in the previous year.

(b) Use of EsƟ mates
The preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounƟ ng principles requires 
management to make esƟ mates and assumpƟ ons that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliƟ es and 
disclosure of conƟ ngent liabiliƟ es at the date of the fi nancial statements and the results of operaƟ ons during the 
reporƟ ng year. Although these esƟ mates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and 
acƟ ons, actual results could diff er from these esƟ mates.

(c) Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost or revalued amounts, as the case may be, less accumulated depreciaƟ on and 
impairment losses (if any). Cost comprises the purchase price and any aƩ ributable cost of bringing the asset 
to its working condiƟ on for its intended use. Borrowing costs relaƟ ng to acquisiƟ on of fi xed assets which takes 
substanƟ al period of Ɵ me to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period 
Ɵ ll such assets are ready to be put to use.

(d) DepreciaƟ on on fi xed assets
 (i) DepreciaƟ on on all fi xed assets is provided on Straight Line Method as per Schedule XIV of the Companies 

Act, 1956 on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addiƟ on/ sale. The management of the Company 
is of the view that this depreciaƟ on rate fairly represents the useful life of the assets. Most of the Plant and 
Machinery have been considered as conƟ nuous process plant based on technical evaluaƟ on and reports.

 (ii) Ropeways are depreciated over an esƟ mated useful life of 2-8 years.
 (iii) Motor Cars are depreciated over an esƟ mated useful life of 5 years.
 (iv) Assets cosƟ ng less than Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
 (v) In respect of the revalued assets, the diff erence between the depreciaƟ on calculated on the revalued amount 

and that calculated on the original cost is recouped from the RevaluaƟ on Reserve Account.
 (vi) Leasehold Land is amorƟ zed over the period of iniƟ al lease term ranging from 5 to 20 years.

(e) Intangibles
Costs incurred on acquisiƟ on of intangible assets are capitalized and amorƟ zed on a straight-line basis over their 
technically assessed useful lives, as menƟ oned below:

Intangible Assets EsƟ mated Useful Life (Years)
IT SoŌ ware 5

(f) Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indicaƟ on of impairment 
based on internal/ external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the esƟ mated future cash fl ows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the Ɵ me value of money and risks 
specifi c to the asset. For the purpose of accounƟ ng of impairment, due consideraƟ on is given to revaluaƟ on 
reserve, if any.
AŌ er impairment, depreciaƟ on is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.
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A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. However 
the carrying value aŌ er reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging 
usual depreciaƟ on if there was no impairment.

(g) Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classifi ed as current 
investments. All other investments are classifi ed as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at 
lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at 
cost. However, provision for diminuƟ on in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value 
of the investments.

(h) Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:
Raw materials, stores and spares 
and Packing materials

Lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other 
items held for use in the producƟ on of inventories are not wriƩ en down 
below cost if the fi nished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. 
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes cost incurred 
in bringing the material to its present locaƟ on and condiƟ on.

Stock-in-process and Finished goods Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and 
labour and a proporƟ on of manufacturing overheads based on normal 
operaƟ ng capacity. Cost of fi nished goods includes excise duty. Cost is 
determined on a weighted average basis.

Scrap Net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the esƟ mated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less esƟ mated costs of 
compleƟ on and esƟ mated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Revenue RecogniƟ on
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i) Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised when the signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods is passed to the 
buyer. Excise Duty deducted from turnover (gross) is the amount that is included in the amount of turnover 
(gross) and not the enƟ re amount of liability arose during the year. Sales are reported net of sales tax, 
incenƟ ves and rebates.  

(ii) Interest 
Revenue is recognised on a Ɵ me proporƟ on basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

(j) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly aƩ ributable to the acquisiƟ on, construcƟ on or producƟ on of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substanƟ al period of Ɵ me to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the respecƟ ve asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an enƟ ty incurs in connecƟ on with the borrowing of funds.

(k) Leases
Leases where the lessor eff ecƟ vely retains substanƟ ally all the risks and benefi ts of ownership of the leased item 
are classifi ed as OperaƟ ng Leases. OperaƟ ng Lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Profi t & Loss 
Account on a straight line basis over the lease period.

(l) Foreign Currency TransacƟ ons
(i) IniƟ al RecogniƟ on

Foreign currency transacƟ ons are recorded in the reporƟ ng currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the reporƟ ng currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transacƟ on.
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(ii) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of 
the transacƟ on; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuaƟ on denominated 
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

(iii) Exchange Diff erences
Exchange diff erences arising on seƩ lement of monetary items or on reporƟ ng Company’s monetary items 
at rates diff erent from those at which they were iniƟ ally recorded during the year, or reported in previous 
fi nancial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

(iv) Forward Exchange Contracts not intended for trading or speculaƟ on purposes 
The premium or discount arising at the incepƟ on of forward exchange contracts (not for hedging fi rm 
commitment/highly probable forecast transacƟ ons) is amorƟ sed as expense or income over the life of the 
contract. Exchange diff erences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of profi t and loss in the year 
in which the exchange rates change. Any profi t or loss arising on cancellaƟ on or renewal of forward exchange 
contract is recognised as income or as expense for the year.

(m) DerivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments and hedge accounƟ ng
The Company has adopted the principles of AS 30 “Financial Instruments: RecogniƟ on and Measurement” in 
respect of its derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments that are not covered by AS 11 “AccounƟ ng for the eff ects of changes 
in Foreign Exchange Rates”.
The Company uses derivaƟ ve fi nancial instrument such as cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign 
currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments are iniƟ ally recognised at fair value on 
the date on which a derivaƟ ve contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. DerivaƟ ves 
are carried as fi nancial assets when the fair value is posiƟ ve and as fi nancial liabiliƟ es when the fair value is negaƟ ve.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivaƟ ves are taken directly to the profi t and loss account, 
except for the eff ecƟ ve porƟ on of cash fl ow hedge, which is recognised in Hedging Reserve Account included in the 
Reserves and Surplus while any ineff ecƟ ve porƟ on is recognised immediately in the profi t and loss account.
For the purpose of hedge accounƟ ng, hedges are classifi ed as:
• Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset  or liability.
• Cash fl ow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash fl ows that is either aƩ ributable to a parƟ cular 

risk associated with a recognised asset or liability.
At the incepƟ on of a hedge relaƟ onship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relaƟ onship 
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounƟ ng and the risk management objecƟ ve and strategy for 
undertaking the hedge. The documentaƟ on includes idenƟ fi caƟ on of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or 
transacƟ on, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the enƟ ty will assess the eff ecƟ veness of changes in the 
hedging instrument’s fair value in off seƫ  ng the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash fl ows 
aƩ ributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly eff ecƟ ve in achieving off seƫ  ng changes in 
fair value or cash fl ows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly 
eff ecƟ ve throughout the fi nancial reporƟ ng periods for which they were designated.

(n) Employee Benefi ts
 (i) SuperannuaƟ on Fund (being administered by Trusts) and Employees’ State Insurance CorporaƟ on (ESIC) 

are defi ned contribuƟ on schemes and the contribuƟ ons are charged to the Profi t and Loss Account of the 
year when the contribuƟ ons to the respecƟ ve funds are due. There are no other obligaƟ ons other than the 
contribuƟ on payable to the respecƟ ve funds. 

 (ii) ReƟ rement benefi ts in the form of Provident Fund contributed to Statutory Provident Fund is a defi ned 
contribuƟ on scheme and the payments are charged to the Profi t and Loss Account of the year when the 
payments to the respecƟ ve funds are due. There are no obligaƟ ons other than contribuƟ on payable to 
Provident Fund AuthoriƟ es.

 (iii) ReƟ rement benefi ts in the form of Provident Fund contributed to Trust set up by the employer is a defi ned 
benefi t scheme and the payments are charged to the Profi t and Loss Account of the year when the payments 
to the Trust are due. Shorƞ all in the funds, if any, is adequately provided for by the Company.

 (iv) Gratuity liability (being administered by a Trust) is a defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on and is provided for on the 
basis of an actuarial valuaƟ on done using projected unit credit method at the end of each fi nancial year. 
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 (v) Short term compensated absences are provided for based on esƟ mates. Long term compensated absences 
are provided for based on actuarial valuaƟ on using projected unit credit method at the end of each 
fi nancial year.

 (vi) Actuarial gains/ losses are immediately taken to Profi t and Loss Account and are not deferred.
 (vii) Expenses incurred under Voluntary ReƟ rement Scheme are charged to Profi t & Loss account immediately.

(o) Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current, deferred and fringe benefi t tax. Current income tax and fringe benefi t tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authoriƟ es in accordance with the Indian Income-tax Act, 
1961. Deferred income taxes refl ect the impact of current year Ɵ ming diff erences between taxable income and 
accounƟ ng income for the year and reversal of Ɵ ming diff erences of earlier years.
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substanƟ vely enacted at the balance 
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliƟ es are off set, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off  
current tax assets against current tax liabiliƟ es and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliƟ es relate to the 
taxes on income levied by same governing taxaƟ on laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
there is reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realised. In situaƟ ons where the company has unabsorbed depreciaƟ on or carry forward tax losses, 
all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they 
can be realised against future taxable profi ts.
At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognised 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that 
suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The company writes-down 
the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, 
as the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be 
realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available.
MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company 
will pay normal income tax during the specifi ed period. In the year in which the Minimum AlternaƟ ve tax (MAT) 
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendaƟ ons contained in 
Guidance Note issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a 
credit to the profi t and loss account and shown as MAT Credit EnƟ tlement. The Company reviews the same at each 
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit EnƟ tlement to the extent there is no longer 
convincing evidence to the eff ect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specifi ed period.

(p) Segment ReporƟ ng Policies
 (i) IdenƟ fi caƟ on of segments:

The Company’s operaƟ ng businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of products and 
predominant source of the risk for the Company is business product, therefore business segment has been 
considered as primary segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which the 
Company operates.

 (ii) Segment Policies:
The Company prepares its segment informaƟ on in conformity with the accounƟ ng policies adopted for 
preparing and presenƟ ng the fi nancial statements of the Company as a whole.

(q) Provisions
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligaƟ on as a result of past event and it is probable 
that an ouƞ low of resources will be required to seƩ le the obligaƟ on, in respect of which a reliable esƟ mate can be 
made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best esƟ mate required to 
seƩ le the obligaƟ on at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to 
refl ect the current best esƟ mates. 

(r) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profi t or loss for the period aƩ ributable to equity 
shareholders aŌ er deducƟ ng preference dividends and aƩ ributable taxes by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period.



HeidelbergCement India Limited

42

For the purpose of calculaƟ ng diluted earnings per share, the net profi t or loss for the period aƩ ributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
eff ects of all diluƟ ve potenƟ al equity shares, if any.

(s) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash fl ow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less.

 3. The Capital Work-in-progress relaƟ ng to tangible fi xed assets includes capital advances amounƟ ng to Rs. 5,388.74 lacs 
(Previous year: Rs. 15,077.68 lacs) and inventory of capital items in transit amounƟ ng to Rs. 1,987.16 lacs (Previous 
Year: Rs. 2,089.73 lacs).
Capital work-in-progress includes expenditure during construcƟ on period on substanƟ al expansion of exisƟ ng units of 
the company.

 (Rs. in lacs)
ParƟ culars Opening AddiƟ on during 

the year 
Closing 

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 428.50 834.48 1,262.98 
ContribuƟ on to Provident Fund 21.75 30.11 51.86 
Workmen & Staff  Welfare Expenses 13.84 2.21 16.05 
Stores and Spares 5.04 22.46 27.50
Rent 57.79 65.56 123.35
Rates and Taxes 7.50 12.59 20.09
Insurance 74.62 66.44 141.06
Travelling & Conveyance 81.17 142.72 223.89
CommunicaƟ on Cost 5.81 11.53 17.34
Legal & Professional expenses 
(Including Retainers fees)

605.34 1,311.60 1,916.94

Interest on term loan - 286.54 286.54
Interest Income - (255.16) (255.16)
Interest on others - 2,506.09 2,506.09
Bank Charges & Guarantee Commission 32.08 176.96 209.04
Miscellaneous Expenses 73.55 401.77 475.32
DepreciaƟ on 39.43 84.69 124.12
Closing Balance 1,446.42 5,700.59 7,147.01

 4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION:
(a) Business Segment

The Company primarily deals in only one business segment i.e, “Cement”.
(b) Geographical Segment

The Company primarily operates into two geographical segments i.e. within India and outside India which are 
based on the locaƟ on of the customers.

   Geographical Segment
 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars 2011 2010
Segment Revenue
Within India 98,114.26 85,664.20
Outside India 150.23 889.66
Total 98,264.49 86,553.86

Segment Debtors
Within India 2,427.26 2,428.27
Outside India - -
Total 2,427.26 2,428.27

Notes: 
All the assets including addiƟ ons made in the current year are located in India.
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 5. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
(a) Names of related parƟ es:

Names of related parƟ es where control exists irrespecƟ ve 
of whether transacƟ ons have occurred or not:
UlƟ mate Holding Company HeidelbergCement AG
Holding Company Cementrum I.B.V
Names of other related parƟ es with whom transacƟ ons 
have taken place during the year:
Fellow Subsidiaries Heidelberg Cement Technology Center

Scancem InternaƟ onal Ans
HeidelbergCement Asia Pte Ltd
Cochin Cements Limited
HC Fuels Limited
PT Indocement Tunggal Prakarsa Tbk
HC Trading Malta Limited
HeidelbergCement Norway

Key Management Personnel Mr. Sushil Kumar Tiwari, Whole Ɵ me 
Director (w.e.f. April 29, 2011)

(b) TransacƟ ons with related parƟ es
 (Rs. in lacs)
ParƟ culars Enterprises where 

control exists
Fellow Subsidiary Key Management 

Personnel
Total

 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

TransacƟ ons with Cementrum I B.V.:

- RedempƟ on of Preference Shares - 1,349.34 - - - - - 1,349.34

- Dividend on Preference  Shares - 43.59 - - - - - 43.59

- ECB taken* 41,398.00 - - - - - 41,398.00 -

- Interest on ECB 847.35 - - - - - 847.35 -

TransacƟ ons with HeidelbergCement AG:

- Corporate Guarantee Charges  paid 155.60 57.47 - - - - 155.60 57.47

- Assignment Cost paid 170.84 35.05 - - - - 170.84 35.05

- Other Receipts 6.46 - - - - - 6.46 -
- Expenses Reimbursed 0.40 - - - - - 0.40 -
- WAN Charges paid - 70.75 - - - - - 70.75

-  Guarantees Given in Company’s favour 58,600.00 3,985.45 - - - - 58,600.00 3,985.45

TransacƟ ons with Cochin Cements Limited: 

- Expenses Recovered - - 470.99 399.18 - - 470.99 399.18

- Sale - - 1,787.05 1,383.53 - - 1,787.05 1,383.53

- Loan Repaid - - - 315.13 - - - 315.13

- Interest Income - - - 20.83 - - - 20.83

TransacƟ ons with HeidelbergCement Asia Pte Limited: 

- Technical Know How Fee paid - - 1,578.93 1,385.42 - - 1,578.93 1,385.42

- Expenses Reimbursed - - 1.82 - - - 1.82 -

TransacƟ ons with PT Indocement Tunggal Prakarsa Tbk 

- ERP Maintenance Charges paid - - 45.45 - - - 45.45 -

TransacƟ ons with Scancem InternaƟ onal Ans

- Expenses Reimbursed - - - 11.60 - - - 11.60

TransacƟ ons with HeidelbergCement Norway

- Expenses Reimbursed - - 9.88 - - - 9.88 -

TransacƟ ons with HC Trading Malta Limited

- Purchase of Material - - 1,684.98 1,235.81 - - 1,684.98 1,235.81

TransacƟ on with Key Management Personnel 

- Managerial RemuneraƟ on - - - - 48.41 - 48.41 -
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ParƟ culars Enterprises where 
control exists

Fellow Subsidiary Key Management 
Personnel

Total

 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Balance outstanding at the year end 

Receivable
- Cochin Cements Ltd - - 55.59 - - - 55.59 -

Payable

- Cementrum I B.V.
Interest accrued but not due on ECB
- HeidelbergCement AG
-  HeidelbergCement Technology Center
- HeidelbergCement Norway
- HC Trading Malta
- Scancem InternaƟ onal
- HeidelbergCement Asia Pte Limited

404.48
347.86

-
-
-
-
-

-
119.00

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

9.88
18.66

3.55
372.13

-
-

24.00
-
-

2.99
275.15

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

404.48
347.86

-
9.88

18.66
3.55

372.13

-
119.00

24.00
-
-

2.99
275.15

Loan

- Cementrum I B.V.* 47,691.18 - - - - - 47,691.18 -

Guarantees Outstanding

- HeidelbergCement AG 63,171.01 15,085.45 - - - - 63,171.01 15,085.45

* Diff erence of Rs. 6,293.18 lacs in ECB loan amount received & payable to Cementrum IBV as at December 31, 2011 is on 
account of restatement of ECB loan at closing exchange rate.

 6. The Company has taken various residenƟ al premises, offi  ce premises and warehouses under operaƟ ng lease 
agreements. These are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms 
except for three offi  ce premises which are taken on a non-cancellable lease. The Company has recognized Rs. 258.13 lacs 
(Previous year: Rs. 267.39 lacs) in respect of cancellable operaƟ ng leases and Rs. 47.42 lacs (Previous year: Rs. 34.07 lacs) in 
respect of non-cancellable operaƟ ng leases.

OperaƟ ng Lease (Non Cancellable)

The total of future minimum lease payments under non- cancellable operaƟ ng leases for each of the following periods:

 (Rs. in lacs)

S. No. ParƟ culars 2011 2010

(i) Not later than one year; 63.61 34.07

(ii) Later than one year and not later than fi ve years; 19.62 34.07

(iii) Later than fi ve years;  -  -

Out of the total rent recognised, Rs. 6.00 lacs (Previous year Rs.25.46 lacs) relaƟ ng to residenƟ al accommodaƟ on 
provided to the employees has been shown under Personnel Expenses.

 7. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
EsƟ mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 
Rs.21,489.72 lacs (Previous year: Rs.84,109.97 lacs).

 8. CONTINGENCIES
(a) ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es not provided for

 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars 2011 2010

A. Disputed Statutory claims/levies: 
Excise Duty/Service Tax 478.25 636.35
Income Tax 27.49 -
Sales Tax/Trade Tax 9,275.28 8,565.64
Entry Tax 678.75 605.18
Diff erenƟ al Royalty on Limestone 16,053.25 13,999.51
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ParƟ culars 2011 2010

B. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debts
Claims by various Suppliers of goods and Services 204.35 132.35
Electricity charges 807.61 786.80
Claims by customers and others 83.03 250.71

C. Show cause noƟ ces for levy
Excise Duty / Service Tax 709.25 508.80
Sales Tax 53.94 54.00

In respect of above cases based on the favorable decisions in similar cases/legal opinions taken by the 
Company/discussions with the solicitors etc., the management is of the opinion that it is possible, but not 
probable, that the acƟ on will succeed and accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in these 
fi nancial statements.

(b) Provision for LiƟ gaƟ on

 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars Balance as 
at January 1, 

2011

 AddiƟ ons 
during the 

period

 Amounts 
reversed 

during the 
period

Balance as 
at December 

31, 2011

Trade Tax UƩ ranchal, Jhansi (UP) 217.26 - - 217.26
Turnover Tax, Jhansi (UP) 5.84 - - 5.84
Entry Tax, Jhansi (UP)-Cement 2,780.96 - - 2,780.96
Entry Tax, Jhansi (UP)-Clinker 693.37 - - 693.37
M.P. Commercial Tax, Damoh (MP) 0.53 - - 0.53
Haryana Sales Tax, Damoh (MP) 0.79 - - 0.79
Provision taken for Cess on CapƟ ve Power, 
Damoh (MP) 

867.52 - - 867.52

9% Entry Tax on HSD & LDO, Damoh (MP) 357.82 - - 357.82
UP- Entry Tax (Cement), Damoh (MP) 1,421.05 - - 1,421.05
Service Tax (GTO), Damoh & Jhansi 34.62 - - 34.62
Power Defi cit Bill –MPSEB, Damoh (MP) 148.00 5.93 - 153.93
Entry Tax on R.M, Damoh (MP) 801.32 154.74 - 956.06
Entry Tax on HDPE Bags (3%), Damoh (MP) 94.64 - - 94.64
Entry Tax on Limestone (9%), Damoh (MP) 38.75 - - 38.75
Entry Tax on Limestone (Diff erenƟ al), Damoh 
(MP) 

1,014.92 - - 1,014.92

Bihar Sales Tax, Damoh (MP) 38.69 - - 38.69
Rural Infrastructure and Road Development Tax, 
Damoh (MP) 

368.48 76.68 - 445.16

Service Tax on outward freight, Raigad 
(Maharashtra)

107.95 - - 107.95

Environment protecƟ on fees, Ammasandra 
(Karnataka)

144.61 - - 144.61

Input reversal on hiring of equipments, Damoh 
(MP)

26.33 18.27 - 44.60

TOTAL 9,163.45 255.62 - 9,419.07

Above provisions have been made against demands raised by various authoriƟ es. All these cases are under 
liƟ gaƟ on and are pending with various authoriƟ es; expected Ɵ ming of resulƟ ng ouƞ low of economic benefi ts 
cannot be specifi ed.
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 9. CROSS CURRENCY INTEREST RATE SWAP 
The Company has a cross currency interest rate swap agreement with a bank for ECB Loan of USD 90,000,000 
whereby the Company pays a fi xed rate of interest of 7.65% to 9.55% (for various tranches of loan) and 
receives a variable rate equal to LIBOR 6M+250 bps on the loan amount. The swap is being used to hedge 
the ECB loan taken on fl oaƟ ng interest rate of LIBOR 6M+250 bps.
The loss on account of restatement of ECB amounƟ ng to Rs. 6,293.18 lacs has been charged off  to Profi t and 
loss account and off set with a similar gain on increase in fair value of cross currency swap. Eff ecƟ ve porƟ on 
of cash fl ow hedge and diff erenƟ al accrued interest amounƟ ng to Rs.474.09 lacs has been taken to “Hedging 
Reserve Account” under Reserve & Surplus.

 10. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

Forward contracts outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date

Par  culars Currency 2011 2010 Purpose
Forward Exchange contract Euro - 5,829,600 For hedging future payments to be made 

to creditors

Cross currency interest rate swap outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

Par  culars Currency 2011 2010 Purpose
Cross Currency Interest 
Rate Swap

USD 90,000,000 - For hedging future payments to be made 
for repayment of ECB Loan

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

Par  culars Currency 2011 2010
Amount in 

foreign currency
Exchange 

Rate
Rs.

(in lacs)
Amount in 

foreign currency
Exchange 

Rate
Rs.

(in lacs)
Creditors for 
Imports

USD 38,012.70 52.99 20.14 622,094.33 44.71 278.14
NOK 111,470.00 8.86 9.88 - - -
SGD 4,614.11 40.87 1.89 - - -
Euro 1,621,014.35 68.61 1,112.16 239,058.38 59.82 143.00

11. Excise duty on sales amounƟ ng to Rs.14,398.07 lacs (Previous Year Rs.11,983.21 lacs) has been reduced from sales and 
decrease in the excise duty on closing inventories amounƟ ng to Rs. 25.11 lacs (previous year increase of Rs. 129.29 lacs) 
has been considered as an income (expense in the previous year) in the Profi t & Loss Account.

12. Gratuity and other employment benefi t plans
The Company has three post employment funded plans, namely Gratuity, SuperannuaƟ on and Provident Fund.
Gratuity being administered by a Trust is computed as 15 days salary, for every completed year of service or part 
thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on reƟ rement/terminaƟ on/resignaƟ on. The benefi t vests on the employee 
compleƟ ng 5 years of service. The Gratuity plan for the Company is a defi ned benefi t scheme where annual contribuƟ ons 
as demanded by the insurer are deposited to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity benefi ts. The Trust 
Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contribuƟ ons are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes 
provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuaƟ on as per the Projected 
unit credit method. Plan assets also include investments and bank balances used to deposit premiums unƟ l due to the 
insurance company.
ReƟ rement benefi ts in the form of SuperannuaƟ on Fund (being administered by Trusts) are funded defi ned contribuƟ on 
schemes and the contribuƟ ons are charged to the Profi t and Loss Account of the year when the contribuƟ ons to the 
respecƟ ve funds are due. There are no other obligaƟ ons other than the contribuƟ on payable.
The Provident Fund being administered by a Trust is a defi ned benefi t scheme whereby the Company deposits an 
amount determined as a fi xed percentage of basic pay to the fund every month. The benefi t vests upon commencement 
of employment. The interest credited to the accounts of the employees is adjusted on an annual basis to confi rm to 
the interest rate declared by the Government for the Employees Provident Fund. The Guidance Note on implemenƟ ng 
AS-15, Employee Benefi ts (Revised 2005) issued by the AccounƟ ng Standard Board (ASB) states that provident funds 
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set up by employers, which requires interest shorƞ all to be met by the employer, needs to be treated as defi ned 
benefi t plan. Based on cerƟ fi cate issued by the Actuary, there is no defi cit in the fund.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefi t expense recognised in the Profi t and Loss Account and 
the amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Gratuity.

Profi t and Loss Account

Net employee benefi t expense (recognised in Employee Cost)
   (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars Gratuity
2011 2010

Current service cost 128.07 107.86
Interest cost on benefi t obligaƟ on 141.66 123.76
Expected return on plan assets (52.71) (40.39)
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized 12.63 26.28
Past service cost / (credit) recognized - (7.21)
Net benefi t expense 229.65 210.30
Actual Return on plan assets 58.04 81.79

Balance Sheet

Details of Provision for gratuity
 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars Gratuity
2011 2010

Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on 2,073.45 1,828.82
Fair value of plan assets (824.33) (653.92)

1,249.12 1,174.90
Less: Unrecognised past service cost - -
Plan liability 1,249.12 1,174.90

Changes in the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on are as follows: 
 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars Gratuity
2011 2010

Opening defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on 1,828.82 1,605.26
Current service cost 128.07 107.86
Interest cost on benefi t obligaƟ on 141.66 123.76
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized 17.96 67.68
Past service cost / (credit) recognized - (7.21)
Benefi ts paid (43.06) (68.53)
Closing defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on 2,073.45 1,828.82

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: 
 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars Gratuity
2011 2010

Opening fair value of plan assets 653.92 512.37
Expected return 52.71 40.39
ContribuƟ on by employer 155.43 128.28
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized 5.33 41.41
Benefi ts paid (43.06) (68.53)
Closing fair value of plan assets 824.33 653.92

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 160.00 lacs to gratuity in 2012.
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The principal assump  ons used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Par  culars 2011 2010
Discount rate 9.0% 8.0%
Expected rate of return on assets 8.5% 8.0%
Employee Turnover 6.5% 5.0%

Note: 
The es  mates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valua  on, take account of infl a  on, seniority, promo  on 
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The expected return on plan assets is based on market expecta  on, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the 
en  re life of the related obliga  on.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Par  culars 2011
(%)

2010
(%)

Investments with insurer 98.03 97.78
Investments in government bonds 0.12 0.14
Bank balance 1.85 2.08
Total 100.00 100.00

The principal pla n asset consists of a scheme of insurance taken by the Trust, which is a qualifying insurance policy.
Amounts for the current and previous years are as follows:

 (Rs. in lacs)
Par  culars Gratuity

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Defi ned benefi t obliga  on (2,073.45) (1,828.82) (1,605.26) (1,546.00) (1,689.78)
Plan assets 824.33 653.92 512.37 675.53 695.39
Surplus / (defi cit) (1,249.12) (1,174.90) (1,092.89) (870.47) (994.39)
Experience loss/(gain) on plan liabili  es 17.96 67.68 185.47 (181.18) (342.68)
Experience loss/(gain) on plan assets (5.33) (41.41) 43.75 (40.52) 11.97

Contribu  on to Defi ned Contribu  on Plans
 (Rs. in lacs)

Par  culars 2011 2010
Provident Fund 346.25 257.32
Other Post Employment Funds 44.23 40.80
Total 390.48 298.12

13. Earning Per Share (EPS)
 (Amount in Rs. )

Par  culars 2011 2010
Net profi t as per profi t and loss account 291,725,000 632,995,000
Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon - 5,082,439
Net profi t for calcula  on of basic/diluted EPS 291,725,000 627,911,561
Weighted average number of equity shares in calcula  ng basic/diluted EPS 
[Nominal value of shares Rs.10 (Previous Year Rs.10)]

226,613,116 226,613,116

Earning per share 1.29 2.77

14. Auditors’ Remunera  on
 (Rs. in lacs)

Par  culars 2011 2010
As auditor

- Audit Fees 93.00 98.00
- Tax Audit 7.00 7.00

Reimbursement of expenses 3.57 4.42
Total 103.57 109.42
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15. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 as per the informaƟ on available with 
the Company in response to the enquiries from all exisƟ ng suppliers with whom the Company deals.

 (Rs. in lacs)

S. No. Particulars 2011 2010

(i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
 - Principal amount
 - Interest thereon

240.33
-

193.88
-

(ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of secƟ on 16, along with the amounts 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

- -

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specifi ed under this Act

- -

(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
unƟ l such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for 
the purpose of disallowance as a deducƟ ble expenditure under secƟ on 23 of this Act

- -

16. Supplementary Statutory InformaƟ on
16.1 Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

 (Rs. in lacs)

Particulars 2011 2010

Other Receipt 6.46 -

16.2 Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars 2011 2010

Know-how 1,578.93 1,385.42

ConsultaƟ on Fee 79.84 -

Corporate Guarantee Charges 155.60 57.47

Interest 847.35 -

Others 200.11 121.30

Total 2,861.83 1,564.19

16.3 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
 (Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars 2011 2010

Raw Materials 1,684.98 1,237.26

Components and spare parts 110.61 360.34

Capital goods 5,654.21 1,640.81

Total 7,449.80 3,238.41

17. AddiƟ onal informaƟ on pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4C and 4D of Part II of 
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956
17.1 Licensed & Installed Capacity

Class of Goods Unit Licensed Capacity Installed Capacity
2011 2010

Cement Tonnes 
(Annual)

Licensed capacity is not applicable in view of the 
Company’s product having been de-licensed as per 
the licensing policy of the Government of India.

3,067,000* 3,067,000*

   *As per the technical assessment made by the management
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17.2 Details of ProducƟ on, Sales and Stocks of Finished Goods 

Classes of Goods Opening Stock Production Sales Closing Stock

 Qty
(MT)

Value
(Rs. in lacs)

Qty
(MT)

Qty
(MT)

Value
(Rs. in lacs)

Qty
(MT)

Value
(Rs. in lacs)

Cement 58,479 1,483.64 2,800,289 2,810,505 1,10,019.63 48,263 1,377.22

(36,372) (801.15) (2,631,361) (2,609,254) (95,760.98) (58,479) (1,483.64)

Ground Granulated Blast Furnace 
Slag (GGBS)

1,410 29.70 21,551 20,679 709.74 2,282 40.21

(2,568) (34.53) (15,993) (17,151) (575.34) (1,410) (29.70)

Notes:
1. Figures in brackets are for the previous year.
2. Sales exclude clinker sale of 68,964 MT (Previous year 81,449 MT) amounƟ ng to Rs.1,933.19 lacs (Previous 

year: Rs.2,200.75 lacs).
3. ProducƟ on of Cement is net of 53,393 MT (Previous year 14,364 MT) used for internal consumpƟ on.
4. ProducƟ on of GGBS is net of 58,007 MT (Previous year 66,817 MT) used as internal consumpƟ on for 

manufacturing of cement.
5. Sales value is inclusive of excise duty.

17.3 ConsumpƟ on of raw materials

Particulars Quantity (MT) Value (Rs. in lacs)
2011 2010 2011 2010

Limestone 2,092,817 1,937,977 3,334.56 2,910.73
Pozzolona 647,173 610,221 2,884.14 2,472.32
Slag 405,170 306,096 3,222.66 2,084.06
Gypsum 143,800 155,231 3,372.83 3,236.63
Clinker Purchased 292,674 277,856 7,651.93 7,575.18
Others* - - 2,626.26 2,758.93
Total - - 23,092.38 21,037.85

 *  It is not pracƟ cable to furnish quanƟ taƟ ve informaƟ on in view of the large number of items which diff er in size and nature, each being less 
than 10% in value of the total.

17.4 Imported and indigenous raw material consumed:

Particulars Percentage of total consumption Value (Rs. in lacs)
2011 2010 2011 2010

Imported 8.55 7.60 1,974.67 1,598.95
Indigenous 91.45 92.40 21,117.71 19,438.90
Total 100.00 100.00 23,092.38 21,037.85

17.5 Imported and indigenous stores and spares consumed:

Particulars Percentage of total consumption Value (Rs. in lacs)
2011 2010 2011 2010

Imported 5.97 6.90 231.40 250.00
Indigenous 94.03 93.10 3,647.88 3,371.05
Total 100.00 100.00 3,879.28 3,621.05

17.6 Imported and indigenous packing materials consumed:

Particulars Percentage of total consumption Value (Rs. in lacs)
2011 2010 2011 2010

Imported - - - -
Indigenous 100.00 100.00 4,008.49 3,286.64
Total 100.00 100.00 4,008.49 3,286.64
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18. Managerial remuneraƟ on:
(Rs. in lacs)

ParƟ culars 2011 2010
Salary 41.62 -
ContribuƟ on to SuperannuaƟ on fund 3.77 -
ContribuƟ on to provident  fund 3.02 -
Total 48.41 -

Note: 
As the liabiliƟ es for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the 
amounts pertaining to the director are not included above.

19. Net Dividend remiƩ ed in foreign exchange

ParƟ culars 2011 2010
Period to which it relates - December 12, 2006 to May 11, 2010
No. of Non Resident Shareholders - 1
No. of Preference shares held on which dividend was due - 1,349,336
Amount RemiƩ ed (Euro 735,168) (Rs. in lacs) - 414.57

19. Previous Year ComparaƟ ves

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S R Batliboi & Co. of HeidelbergCement India Limited
Firm RegistraƟ on No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants 

  Sd/-      Sd/-    Sd/-      Sd/-             Sd/- 
Per Manoj Gupta   Anil Kumar Sharma P.G. Mankad     Ashish Guha       Dr. Albert Scheuer
Partner Chief Financial Officer  Chairman CEO & Managing Director         Director
Membership No. 83906 

              Sd/-         Sd/-          Sd/-         Sd/- 
Place: Gurgaon       Rajesh Relan S. Krishna Kumar    Pradeep V. Bhide        Daniel R. Fritz
Date: February 13, 2012 Company Secretary          Director          Director              Director
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Cash Flow Statement 

for the Year ended December 31, 2011

December 31, 2011 
Rs. in Lacs 

December 31, 2010
Rs. in Lacs

A. Cash fl ow from operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es

Net profi t before taxaƟ on 4,236.34 9,594.63

Adjusted for:

DepreciaƟ on 3,139.88 2,884.88 

Loss on sale of fi xed assets (net) 83.43 53.64 

Profi t on sale of Long Term Non Trade Investment  - (108.00)

Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 33.03  -   

(Profi t) on sale of Assets held for sale  -  -   

Provision for Wealth Tax 0.61  0.96 

Interest income (808.70) (1,762.13)

Provision for Obsolescence of raw materials 112.50  -   

Provision for Doubƞ ul Debts and Advances 37.85 4.65

Sundry balances wriƩ en off 15.56 3.65

Provision/LiabiliƟ es no longer required, wriƩ en back (119.56) (440.63)

Interest expenses 211.94 286.70

OperaƟ ng profi t before working capital changes 6,942.88 10,518.35 

Movements in working capital :

Decrease/(Increase) in sundry debtors (4.21) (217.42)

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (4,067.24) (661.38)

Decrease/(Increase) in loans and advances (5,041.87) (3,008.67)

Increase/(Decrease) in current liabiliƟ es and provisions 8,106.06  1,430.25 

Cash generated from operaƟ ons 5,935.62 8,061.13 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (728.22) (2,419.19)

Net cash from operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es 5,207.40 5,641.94 

B. Cash fl ows from invesƟ ng acƟ viƟ es

Purchase of fi xed assets  (68,223.79) (33,415.91)

Proceeds from sale of fi xed assets  9.80 38.17 

Proceeds from sale of investments  -   120.00 

Proceeds from Repayment of Loan given to Fellow Subsidiary  -   315.13 

Proceeds of deposit matured (with maturity more 
than three months) 2,102.00  31,219.01 

Interest received 880.17 1,996.00 

Net cash from / (used in) invesƟ ng acƟ viƟ es (65,231.82) 272.40 
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C. Cash fl ows from fi nancing acƟ viƟ es

Repayment of long-term borrowings  -   (200.00)

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings  71,398.00  - 

RedempƟ on of Preference Share Capital  -   (1,349.34)

Dividend on Preference Share Capital  -   (414.57) 

Tax on dividend paid  -  (70.29)

Interest paid (149.73) (251.71)

Net cash (used in) fi nancing acƟ viƟ es 71,248.27 (2,285.91)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 11,223.85 3,628.43 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,846.78 16,218.35 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31,070.63 19,846.78 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cheques on hand 320.29 89.96 

With banks

 - on current accounts 1,630.34 1,359.59 

 - on deposit accounts 29,120.00 20,499.23 

Cash and Bank balances as per Schedule H 31,070.63 21,948.78 

Less: Fixed deposits not considered as cash equivalents  -   (2,102.00)

Cash & Cash Equivalent in Cash Flow Statement 31,070.63 19,846.78 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S R Batliboi & Co. of HeidelbergCement India Limited
Firm RegistraƟ on No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants 

  Sd/-                  Sd/-      Sd/-        Sd/-        Sd/- 
Per Manoj Gupta     Anil Kumar Sharma P.G. Mankad       Ashish Guha Dr. Albert Scheuer
Partner   Chief Financial Officer    Chairman CEO & Managing Director       Director
Membership No. 83906 

              Sd/-         Sd/-       Sd/-        Sd/- 
Place: Gurgaon         Rajesh Relan S. Krishna Kumar Pradeep V. Bhide    Daniel R. Fritz
Date: February 13, 2012 Company Secretary         Director        Director        Director
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Information Pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 of HeidelbergCement India Limited 
as at 31.12.2011

I. RegistraƟ on Details
Company IdenƟ fi caƟ on No. (CIN) L 2 6 9 4 2 H R 1 9 5 8 F L C 0 4 2 3 0 1

Balance Sheet Date 3 1 - 1 2 - 2 0 1 1
Date Month Year

II. Capital Raised during the Year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue Rights Issue
N I L N I L

Bonus Issue Private Placement
N I L N I L

- Equity
N I L

- Preference
N I L

III. PosiƟ on of MobilisaƟ on and Deployment (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total LiabiliƟ es Total Assets
1 6 2 5 5 8 4 2 1 6 2 5 5 8 4 2

Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital Reserves and Surplus

2 2 6 6 2 2 1 5 8 8 9 6 2 0
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans

N I L 7 7 6 9 1 1 8
Deferred Tax Liability

3 3 0 8 8 3

ApplicaƟ on of Funds
Net Fixed Assets Investments

1 4 5 5 9 1 6 9 N I L
Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
1 6 9 6 6 7 3 N I L

Accumulated Losses Deferred Tax Assets
N I L N I L

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnover Total Expenditure
1 1 2 6 6 2 5 6 9 5 7 4 0 9 6

Profi t/(Loss) before Tax Profi t/(Loss) aŌ er Tax
4 2 3 6 3 4 2 9 1 7 2 5

Earning Per Share aŌ er 
Extraordinary Item Rs. Dividend Rate %

1 . 2 9 N I L

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products / Services of Company
( as per monetary terms )

Item Code No. 
(ITC Code)

2 5 2 3 2 9

Product DescripƟ on P O R T L A N D C E M E N T
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Regd. Offi  ce: 9th Floor, Tower ‘C’, Infi nity Towers, DLF Cyber City, Phase II, Gurgaon, Haryana – 122002

ATTENDANCE SLIP
PLEASE SIGN THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

I hereby record my presence at the 53nd Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company held on Wednesday, the 25th April 2012 at   
9.30 A.M. at Epicentre, Apparel House, Sector 44, InsƟ tuƟ onal Area, Gurgaon, Haryana.

Folio No.: ________________         Name of the Member ________________

DP-ID: ________________

Client-ID: ________________

No. of Shares held: ________________         Signature of the
      Member or Proxy ________________

HeidelbergCement India Limited

Regd. Offi  ce: 9th Floor, Tower ‘C’, Infi nity Towers, DLF Cyber City, Phase II, Gurgaon, Haryana – 122002

PROXY

Folio No.: ________________         No. of Shares held:   ________________

DP-ID: ________________

Client-ID: ________________

I/We………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….....
of……………………………..………….………………………….. being a Member/Members of HeidelbergCement India Limited, do hereby 
appoint………………………………………………………………………………………………………. of ………………………….…………….............................
or failing him……………………………………………… of ………………………………………………………..as my/our proxy in my/our absence 
to aƩ end and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 53nd Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company to be held 
on Wednesday, the 25th April 2012 at 9.30 A.M. at Epicentre, Apparel House, Sector 44, InsƟ tuƟ onal Area, Gurgaon, 
Haryana.

Date: ………………………..

Note : The duly fi lled & signed Proxy Form must be deposited at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company not less than 
48 hours before the Ɵ me for holding the meeƟ ng.

Affi  x
Revenue

Stamp and 
Sign Across


